
FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 17 - STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN  - continued

A summary of the status of the Company's 2003 stock option plan as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and changes
during the period is presented below:

Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise
Price Shares

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 321,992 $ 7.95 400,363 $ 7.75

Granted
Exercised (43,145) 5.56 (78,371) 6.94

Forfeited

Expired

Outstanding at end of year 275,847 8.32 _I2_1„9912 7.95

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $375,627 and $678,693,
respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the Company's plan at December 31,
2007:

Outstanding Exercisable

Number of options 278,847 278,846
Weighted average remaining life 4.99 4.99
Weighted average exercise price 8.32 $ 8.32

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at December 31, 2007 was $731,057.

The Company measures the fair value of each option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: the risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the
time of the grant; the dividend yield is based on the Company's dividend yield at the time of the grant (subject to
adjustment if the dividend yield on the grant date is not expected to approximate the dividend yield over the expected life
of the options); the volatility factor is based on the historical volatility of the Company's stock (subject to adjustment if
historical volatility is reasonably expected to differ from the past); the weighted-average expected life is based on the
historical behavior of employees related to exercises, forfeitures and cancellations. These assumptions are summarized
in a table appearing in Note 16 to these financial statements.

No stock options have been granted since June 2005. The Company received $239,746 and $544,138 as a result of stock
option exercises during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. In accordance with SFAS 123(R),
the amounts received upon exercise will be included as a financing activity in the accompanying statements of cash flows
for the period subsequent to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), and is reported as an operating activity in periods prior to its
adoption.

NOTE 18 - REGULATORY MATTERS 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company's financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company
and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company's and the Bank's
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
Company's and the Bank's  capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators
about components, risk-weightings, and other factors.

20062007
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 18 - REGULATORY MATTERS - continued

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tier 1 and total capital as a percentage of assets and off-
balance-sheet exposures, adjusted for risk-weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Tier 1 capital of the Company and the
Bank consists of common shareholders' equity, excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available-for-sale,
minus certain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital consists of the allowance for loan losses subject to certain limitations.
Total capital for purposes of computing the capital ratios consists of the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

The Company and the Bank are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on average assets (as
defined), which is known as the leverage ratio. Only the strongest institutions are allowed to maintain capital at the
minimum requirement of 3%. All others are subject to maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum.

As of the most recent regulatory examination, the Bank was deemed well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized well capitalized, the Bank must maintain total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based,
and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events that management believes
have changed the Bank's categories.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of the Company and the Bank and the regulatory
minimum requirements.

Minimum Requirement
For Capital

To Be Well-
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective

(Dollars in thousands) Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

December 31, 2007
The Company

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 52,586 10.29% $ 40,883 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 47,315 9.26% 20,438 4.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 47,315 9.46% 20,006 4.00% N/A N/A

The Bank
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 53,824 10.53% $ 40,877 8.00% $ 51,096 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 48,554 9.50% 20,438 4.00% 30,658 6.00%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 48,554 8.85% 21,945 4.00% 27,445 5.00%

December 31, 2006
The Company

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 48,458 12.45% $ 31,149 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 44,456 11.42% 15,575 4.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 44,456 9.90% 17,968 4.00% N/A N/A

The Bank
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 46,444 11.86% 4 31,333 8.00% $ 39,166 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 42,442 10.84% 15,666 4.00% 23,500 6.00%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 42,442 9.45% 17,968 4.00% 22,460 5.00%

NOTE 19 - UNUSED LINES OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated companies
totaling $37,000,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to fourteen day basis for general corporate purposes.
The Company also has a line of credit to borrow funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank of up to $177,511,264. As of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company had borrowed $69,000,000 and $28,500,000, respectively, on this line.
Additionally, the Company has the ability to buy brokered time deposits at December 31, 2007.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. Because no market
value exists for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and
other factors.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments:

Cash and Due from Banks - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Federal Funds Sold and Purchased - Federal funds sold and purchased are for a term of one day and the carrying
amount approximates the fair value.

Securities Available-for-Sale - Fair value equals the carrying amount which is the quoted market price. If quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable securities.

Noninarketable Equity Securities - The carrying amount of nonrnarketable equity securities is a reasonable estimate of
fair value since no ready market exists for these securities.

Loans Held-for-Sale - The carrying amount of loans held for sale is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans Receivable - For certain categories of loans, such as variable rate loans which are repriced frequently and have no
significant change in credit risk and credit card receivables, fair values are based on the carrying amounts. The fair value
of other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans
would be made to the borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.

Deposits - The fair value of demand deposits, savings, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at
the reporting date. The fair values of certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that
applies current interest rates to a schedule of aggregated expected maturities.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value because
these instruments typically have terms of one day.

Advances From Federal Home Loan Bank - The fair values of fixed rate borrowings are estimated using a discounted
cash flow calculation that applies the Company's current borrowing rate from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The
carrying amounts of variable rate borrowings are reasonable estimates of fair value because they can be repriced
frequently.

Junior Subordinated Debentures - The carrying value of junior subordinated debentures approximates its fair value
since the debentures were issued at a floating rate.

AccruedInterest Receivable and Payable - The carrying value of these instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments - Fair values of off-balance sheet lending commitments are based on fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
counterparties' credit standing.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments were as follows:

Financial Assets:

December 31
2007 2006

Carrying
Amount

Estimated Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Estimated Fair
Value

Cash and due from banks 7 , 164,650 $ 7,164,650 $ 17,328,075 $ 17,328,075
Federal funds sold 14,135,000 14,135,000
Securities available-for-sale 58,580,313 58,580,313 35,931,271 35,931,271
Nonmarketable equity securities 3,930,400 3,930,400 2,187,600 2,187,600
Loans, including loans held for sale 487,738,540 481,470,000 360,123,046 350,547,000
Accrued interest receivable 3,092,767 3,092.767 2,464,531 2,464,531

Financial Liabilities:
Demand deposit, interest-bearing

transaction, and savings accounts $ 168,812,402 $ 168,812,402 $ 154,182,263 $ 154,182,263
Certificates of deposit 280,685,313 280,593,000 218,755,820 219,450,000
Securities sold under agreements

to repurchase 7,927,754 7,927,754 8,120,014 8,120,014
Advances from Federal Home

Loan Bank 69,000,000 69,000,000 28,500,000 28,465,000
Federal Funds Purchased 13,359,000 13,359,000
Note payable 3,000,000 3,000,000
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000 10,310,000 10,310,000 10,310,000
Accrued interest payable 767,577 767,577 766,276 766,276

Notional
Amount 

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit $ 76,545,909
Standby letters of credit 2,791249

Notional Estimated Fair
Amount Value

$ 67,370,404 $
3,543,270

Estimated Fair
Value

NOTE 21 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 10, 2007, the Bank entered into a contract to purchase approximately 1.37 acres of land located in North
Charleston, South Carolina. The purchase price for the property was $1,400,000. The contract included an inspection
period of ninety days from the effective date in which the Banj had the right to terminate the contract. The purchase of
this property closed on March 10, 2008.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 22 
a
 FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31
2007 2006

Assets
Cash $ 665,117 $ 923,308
Investment in banking subsidiary 48,530,277 42,389,421
Marketable Investments 251,650 311,505
Nonmarketable equity securities 100,000
Investment in trust 310,000 310,000
Other assets 773,761 499,301

Total assets S 50.530.805 44.533.535

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 192,901 $ 130,272
Note payable 3,000,000
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000 10,310,000

Total liabilities 13,502,901 10,440,272

Shareholders' equity 37,027,904 34,093,263

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 50,530,805

Condensed Statements of Income

December 31,
2007 2006

Income $ 21,533 $ 24,623

Expenses 850,585 755,001

Loss before income taxes and equity in
undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary (829,052) (730,378)

Income tax benefit 276,275 315,501

Income before equity in undistributed earning
of banking subsidiary (552,777) (414,877)

Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary 3,112,297 3,660,785

Net income 2,559,520 $ 3,245,908 
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 22 - FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.  (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) - continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

December 31,
2007 2006

Net income $ 2,559,520 $ 3,245,908
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Increase in other assets (276,960) (441,960)
Increase in other liabilities 82,980 65,476
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary (3,112,297) (3,660,785)

Net cash used by operating activities (746,757) (791,361)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of nonmarketable equity securities (100,000)
Investment in banking subsidiary (3,000,000)
Proceeds on sale of non marketable securities 102,500 -

Net cash used by investing activities (2,897,500) (100,000)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 239,746 544,138
Issuance of shares to ESOP 198,380 472,747
Sale of treasury stock (145,198) 9,896
Issuance of restricted stock 76,379 33,632
Issuance of shares to Advisory Board 16,759 15,025
Proceeds from note payable 3,000,000

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 3,386,066 1,075,438

(Decrease) increase in cash (258,191) 184,077

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 923,308 739,231

Cash and cash equivalents, ending of year $ 665,117 923,308 



FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 23 - QLJARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

The tables below represent the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively:

December 31, 2007
Fourth Third Second First

Total interest and fee income $ 10,097,678 $ 9,708,594 $ 9,318,103 $ 8,416,112
Total interest expense 4,740,765 5,011,381 4,653,632 4,027,431

Net interest income 5,356,913 4,697,213 4,664,471 4,388,681
Provision for loan losses 773,702 408,962 325,202 135,234

Net interest income after provisions
for loan losses 4,583,211 4,288,251 4,339,269 4,253,447

Other income 1,420,328 1,264,500 1,423,726 1,193,185
Other expense 5,344,626 4,624,605 4,486,802 4,505,242

Income before income tax expense 658,913 928,208 1,276,193 941,390
income tax expense 299,182 343,331 368,486 234,183

Net income $ 359.731 $ 584,877 $ 907.708 $ 707.207

Basic income per common share .10 $ .17 $ .26 $ .21

Diluted income per common share .10 5 .17 .26 .20

December 31, 2006
Fourth Third Second First

Total interest and fee income $ 8,571,562 $ 8,484,778 $ 7,635,918 $ 7,024,327
Total interest expense 4,001,265 3,938,100 3,258,676 3,015,658

Net interest income 4,570,297 4,546,678 4,377,242 4,008,669
Provision for loan losses 224,500 477,205 440,501 250,285

Net interest income after provisions
for loan losses 4,345,797 4,069,473 3,936,741 3,758,384

Other income 1,166,574 1,232,896 1,252,768 938,455
Other expense 4,340,612 4,024,389 4,022,098 3,885,285

Income before income tax expense 1,171,759 1,277,980 1,167,411 811,554
Income tax expense 187,382 413,068 344,495 237,851

Net income $ 984.377 $ 822,916 $ 573,703

Basic income per common share .30 $ .25 .17

Diluted income per common share .27 .25 5 .23 .16
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note E ruin Share - co nu d

Three Months Ended September 30,2007

Basic earnings per share
Income available to common sharelmlelers

Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options
Non - vested restricted stock

Diluted earnings per share
laconic available to common shareholders plus assiuncel L(1111/ MiOlIS

Income Shares
(Numerator) (Denominator)

Per Share
Amount

584,877 3,485,861

31,648

7,665

5 0.17

S 0.17584,877 3,525,174

Illuyekr Cpy_in irehensive Income

The components of other comprehens iconic and red la eflu is

Pre-tax Tax Net-of-tax
Amount Benefit (Expense) Amount 

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008:
Unrealized losses on sex:min. available-for-sale (1,937,592) S 058,781 S (1,278,811)

Reclassification adjustmmit Iongains (losses) realized in not income

(1,937,592) 658,781 S (1,278,811)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2807:
Unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale (327,355) 5 111,301 S (216,054)

Reclassification adjustment for gains (losses) realizes! in net income 3,496 (1,189) 2,307

(323,859) 5 110,112 1 (213,747)

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2008:
Unrealized losses on securities availahle-r-sale (780,997) 5 265,539 5 (515,458)

Rte1215Sill.li011 adjustment for gains (losses) realized in net income

(780,997) 5 265,539 1 (518,458)

For the Three Months Ended September 311, 2007:
Unrealized gains on semnitim available-for-sale 333,162 5 (113,275) 5 219,887

Reclassification adjusetnent for gains (loses) realized in net income

Accurnultuud other comprehensive income consists solely of net unrealized gams not loses on sect

333,162 5 (113,275) 219,887

ailable for sale, net °Film deferred tax effects.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents:

June 30,

2008

December 31,

2007

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Cash and due from banks 6,777,796 0 7,164,650

Federal funds sold 6,015,000 -

Total cash and cash equivalents 12,792,796 3,164,650

Securities available-tar-sale 55,125,216 58,580,313

Nonmarketable equity securities 4,372,2110 3,930,4(10

Total investment securities 59,497,416 62,510,713

Loots hold Rr sale 10,447,997 19,600,850

Loans remivable 466,428,206 468,137,690

Less allowance For loan losses (5,740,860) (5,270,607)

Loans, net 460,687,346 462,867,083

Prenises, Furniture and equipment, net 23,678,331 22,233,746

A.m.d interest exteivable 2,712,271 3,092,767

Other real relate owned 473,550 190,950

Cash surrender value life insurance 10,769,838 10,540,273

Other assets 4,092,857 3,497,180

Total assets 585,152,402 5 591,704,212

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing transaction accounts 47,008,751 0 43,542,528

Interest-bearing transaction accounts 28,321,944 39,450,393

Savings 82,073,717 85,819,481

Time deposirs 8100,000 and over 179,899,400 169,825,252

Other time deposits 118,971,469 110 860,061

Total &posits 456,275,287 449,497,715

Securities sold under agreement to reptirehase 0.421,356 7,927,754

Federal Rinds purchased 13,359,000

Advances from Federal Horne Loan Bank 68,51/0,000 09,1381.609

Note payable 3,000,000 3,000,188)

Junior subordinated debentures 1 0,110,000 10,310,000

Auenied interest payable 596,016 767,577

Other liabilities 2.396,273 814,262

Total liabilities 547,498,932 554,676,308

Shareholders' Equity

Common stock. 0001 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorizrvl,

Issiuvl 3,523,775 shares at lune 30, 2008 and 3,504,311 shares at Du:rather 31, 2007

Shares Outstanding 3,513,524 at Mite 30, 2008 and 3,494,646 at December II, 2007 35,135 34,946

Nonvestel restricted stock (237,078) (152,762)

Capital surplus 26,050,718 25,1175,012

Treasury stock (10,251 and 9,667 shares at cost in 3(108 and 2007, respectively) (153,500) (145,198)

Retained earnings 11,722,917 11,417,275

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (764,722) (1,369)

Total shareholders' equity 37,653,470 37,027,904

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity S 585,152,402 $ 591,704,212

See notes to condesed Financial statements
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

Interest income:

Six Months Ended
June 30,

Three Months Ended
June 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007

Loans, inhaling 11.s 17,660,316 S 16,510,892 5 8,560,841 5 8,618,219

Investment securities:
Taxable 675,964 446,076 329,580 211,742

Nontaxable 655,492 352,957 327,882 182,816

Federal funds sold 11,840 336,410 9,947 257,751

Other interest income 113,964 87,880 62,674 47,575

Total 19,117,576 17,734,215 9,290,924 9,318,103

Interest expense:
Time Deposits over 5100,000 4,032,916 3,152,637 1,995,863 1,760,167

Other deposits 3,405,068 4,6114,469 1,502,973 2,416,821

Other interest expense 1,884,358 923,937 964,838 476,644

Total 9,322,342 8,681 063 4,463,674 4,653,632

Net interest income 9,795,234 9,053,152 4,827,250 4,664,471

Provision For loan losses 1,147,397 460,436 645,794 325,202

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 8,647,837 0,592 , 716 4,181,456 4,339,269

Non interest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 929,852 908,437 492,717 465.767

Gain on sides or mortgage lows 1,126,357 1,116,131 566,973 645,889

Brokerage rots 106,557 85,869 56,227 45,009

Income from Bank Owned Lire Insurance 229,565 201,050 107,811 100,310

Other charges, commissions and rem 238,095 167,394 124,823 89,632

Gain on sale or suatritim 5,996 4,975

Gain on sale or other real estate 20,374 11,009

Gain on sale or fixed assets 16,104 1,689

Other nomintermt bmome 100,869 95,556 50,950 59,446

Total 2,731,295 2,616,911 1,399,501 1,423,726

Nottinterest expenses:
Sal arias and employee himelits 5,753,376 5,227,430 2,808,625 2,631,655

Occupancy expense 731,432 655,892 391,729 318,496

Furniture and equipment expense 422,490 419,763 209,531 229,11)2

Odier operating espouses 2,554,775 2,688,958 1 , 317,792 1,3)17,548

Total 9,462,073 8,992,043 4,727,677 4,486,801

Income before income taxes 1,917,059 2,217,584 853,280 1.276,194

Muttme tax expense 407,515 602,669 169,859 368,486

Net income 5 1,509,544 S 1,614,915 S 683,421 S 907,708

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 5 0.43 S 0.47 5 0.20 5 0.20

Diluted earnings per share 5 0.43 S 0.45 5 0.20 S 11.26

See notes In cannoned financial statements
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income

For the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

(Unaudited)

Belmme

Common Stock

Surplus

12.triaccl

Stock

reoury

Stock

Retained

Earnioge

ncome

(Lore) TotalShares Mumma

December 31, 2006 3,424,878 S 34,240 S 25,257,814 .3 (66,130 S 8,857,755 4 9,576 S 34.093,263

Net income 1,614,915 1,014,915

Other comprehensive

lost net or unt

henefil 01 1 5222,108 (433,634) (433,634)

Comprehmeive income 1 , 181 381

lestonco of sloms In 404o plan 13,303 134 108,246 100,300

Reno-R.4 stock 7,118 1 40.603 (76397) 30,337

Exercise afslock option, 00,145 301 213.430 213,821

3,484, 024 .4 34.845 4 25,776,153 S (141,528) 3 111,472,6711 4 (424,053) 4 35,7176102

Decemher 31, 2007 0,494,646 5 04,046 S 25,8753112 5 (152,762) S 045,108) S 0,417,275 0 (1,360) S 37,027,924

Najectment to rellmt the

ourtmlativcrellhet of elmige in

Amounting Ihr Tiro !nog-Inge

Arrangement (203,002) (203,000)

Ralmee

Duren., 31.21x17 3,4 04,946 25405,012 052.762) 045,108) 11,213.073 (1,060) 36,824,002

Net begone 1,509,514 1,500,544

Chlgr comprehensive loss

NO 08

hood) or 31 390.242 (763.353) (700,053)

Comprehensive income 746,191

)*r hose of Tremor!, Mock (0,102) (8.3112)

Restricted 0446 14.028 MO 00,7)0 (84,316) 60,563

Exercise of Slock Options 4,05U 40 24.967 25,016

000.,.., .1 'we MI, 1008 3,513,524 4 15 135 4 26,11511,718 S (207,1178) 4 (153,5011) 0 12,122 ,917 4 (764,722) 1 07,653,476

Soo non, to condones' financial stalemonts

htto://idea.see.vov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121 10q.htm 2/13/2009



Page 6 of 41

FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Floes
(Unaudited)

Cash Bows from operating activities:

Six Months Ended
June 311,

2008 2007

Net income S 1,509,544 5 1,614,915

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cod a

Providal by operating activities'
Provision for loan losses 1,147,397 460,436

Depreciation .cInunertfration expense 472,929 359,363

Gain °sisal° of equipment (16,104)

Gaits on sale of tuba real estate owned (20,374)

Gain on sale of available-fisr-sale gamins. .. (5,996)

Write down of odmr real estate ownal 1110,750 -

Discount accretion anal premium amortization 15,581 31,135

Disbursements for loans held-for-sale (74,296,570 (69,616,6(11)

Proceeds from loans held-for-sale 83,449,431 69,775,703

Deferred income tax benefit (582,426) (1,005,942)

Decrease in interest receivable 380,496 42,850

Increase (decrease) in interest payable (171,561) 14,131

Amortization of deferred compensation on restricted stock 66,563 30,337

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 1,405,049 (601,247)

(Increase) decrease in other assets 3,078 165,044

Net cash provided by operating activities 13,506,253 1,167,650

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net (increase) decrease in loans receivable 623.4911 (51,218,168)

Purchases of. wurities available-for-sale (10,019,236)

Proceeds on. ales of semuities available-fer-sale 9,785,569

Maturities of srxonsinim available-for-sale 2,282,921 1,067,689

Purchase of marketable equity securities (441,800) (857,3180)

Premeds on sale of nonmarketable Noisy semeities 1,052,01)0

Sales of other real estate owned 25,500 869,222

Proceeds: from disposal of premises, furniture, and equip.. 18,066

Purchases or premises anal Hunt - nt. (1,797,105) (4,489,472)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 693,1106 (53,771,63(1)

Cash !lows from financing activities:
Net incr.se (lexasuBe) in demand deposits, interest bearing and savings account. (11,407,990) 6,892,789

Net increase in certificates of deposit and other time deposits 18,185,561 44,922,760

Decrease in Ferleral Funds purchasnal (I 3,359,000) -

Net (decrease) increase in securities sold with" agreements to repurchase (1,506,398) 3,010,825

Decrease en advances from the Federal Hon. Loan Bank (500,0101) (2,500,))0)

Proceeds from issuance or m,,,,,,, to ESOP 198,380

Sale or tremury stock (8,302) -

ProceenLn bons the exercise of stock options 25,016 213,821

Nta cash provider! (used) by financing activities (8,571,113) 52,738,575

Net increase in cash and cacti equivalents 5,628,146 134,595

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7,164,650 31,463,075

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 12,792,796 S 31,597,670

Cash paid during the period for
hum lama 922,499 S 378,034

Inl6vest 9,493,903 $ 8,695,194

Sec notes to condensed financial stattments.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note I - Basis of Pmebendlop

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements for interim financial statements and, accordingly, they are condensed and omit disclosures, which would substantially duplicate those contained in the

most recent annual report to shareholders. The financial statements as glum 30 2008 and 2007 and for the interim periods then en ded are unaudited and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments (consisting of normal renurring accruals)

considered immuntery tier a !kir presentation. The financial information as o II:december 31, 2(107 has been derived from the maned financial statements as of that date. For fiirthex information, refer to the fmancial statements and the notes included in

First Reliance Bancshares, Inc.'s 2007 Annual Report on Fenn 10-K.

Note 2 - Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The following in a seminary or recent authoritative pranoinmements:

In December 2007, the FASB inn.] SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations," ("SPAS I41(R)") which replaces SPAS 141. SFAS 141(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination remignizes and

measures in its financial statements die identifiable assets acquired, die liabilities in:sinned, and any controlling interest; recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in the bioinms combination or 0 gain from a bargain purchase; and determines what

infommtion to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SPAS 141(R) is effective fur acquisitions by the Company taking place on or after January 1, 2002 Early

adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, a calendar year-end company is required to on.' and disclose business conthinatimu following existing aeomming guidance until January 1, 2009. The Company will assess the impact of SEAS 141(R) if and

when a future acquisition occurs.

In Dec. -Aber 2007, the FASB issued SPAS No. 160, "Noneontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements amendment of ARB No. 51" ("SPAS 160"). SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling

interest in a subsidiary and for die &consolidation of a subsidiary. Before this statement, limitnl guidance existed for reporting nolunntralling interests (minority interim). As a result, diversity in practice exists. In some caws minority 1111.0,0t

reported as a liability and in others it is reported in the mezzanine section between liabilities mid equity. Specifically, SPAS 160 reignses the recognition of a noncontrolling interest (minority interest) an equity in die consolidated financials statements

and separate from the parent's equity. The amount of net income attributable to t h e noncondolling interrst will be included in consolidates' no income on the face of the income statement SPAS 160 elnifies dint changes in a parent's ownership

interest in a subsidiary that do not result in damosolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains iR controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires that a parent recognize gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is

denonsalidatml. Such gain or loss will he measured using the fair value of the nenmonnolling equity investment en the denonsolidation date. SPAS 160 also includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the interests of die proem and its

non controlling interims. SPAS 160 is effective for the Company on January I, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibiml. The Company is eurrently evaluating die impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS 160 will have on its financial position, results of

operations and cash flows.

In Mar. 2008, due PASS issued SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Holging Activities" ("SPAS 161"). SFAS 161 requires 0111.10eft disclosures about an entity's derivative and Inalging activities tual thereby improving the

transparelmy of financial reporting. It is intended to enhance the cun-oit disclosure framework in SPAS 133 by requiring that objectives for ming derivative instruments he disclosed in terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. This

disclosure boner conveys the purpose of derivative use in toms of the risks that the entity is intending to manage. SPAS 161 is ellective for the Company on January I, 21109. This pronouncement clam net impact accounting nmantirtmeints but will

result in additional disclosures if  Company is involved in material derivative and hedging activities at that time.

In February 2008, die FASB issued PASS Staft . Position No. 140-3, "Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Repurchase Financing Transactions" ("FSP 140-3"). This FSP provides guidance on accounting for a transfer of a financial asset

maul the transferor's repurchase financing of the asset, This FSP presumes that an initial transfix of a financial asset and it repurchase financing are considered part of the same arrangement (linked transaction) under SPAS No. 140. However, if certain

criteria are nee, din initial transfix' and repurchase financing are not evaluate' as a linktx1 transaction mil are evaluated separately under Statenmut 140. FSP 140-3 will be effintive for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning alio-

November 15, 2008, and interim periods within sham fiscal years and earlier application is not pumittexl. Accordingly, thin FSP is ellective for the Company on January I, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of

FSP 140-3 will have on its financial position, results of operations and cash flows.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2 - Recently Issued Accounting 12EQBuILJ,Reate_eueffs- continued

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Asses" ("FSP 142-3"), This FSP amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to

determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No, 142, "Goodwill and Other intangible Assets". The intuit of this FSP is to improve the consistency between the useful life of a recognized intangible asset tender SFAS No 142

and the period of expmted cash flows used to mnsure the fair value of the asset under SFAS No, 141(R), "Business Combinations," and other U.S goemslly accepted accounting principles, This FSP is effective for financial statements issued foe fiscal

yeses beginning alter December 15, 2(103, and interim periods within those fiscal years anti early adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, this FSP is effective for the Company on January I, 2009, The Company does not believe the adoption of FSP 142-3

will have a material impact on is financial position, results or operations or cash flows.

Effective January I, 2008, the Company adopted SEAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SPAS 157") which provides a framework for measuring and disclosing fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. SFAS 157 requiem

disclosurm about the fair value of assets and liabilities recognized in the bHmee sheet in periods subsequent to initial recognition, whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis (for example, available-for-stile inymtment securities) or on a

nonrecurring basis (for maniple, impairml loans).

SFAS 157 definm fair value as the exchange price that would be received! for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the mmsuron exit date. SPAS 157 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requiem em entity to 11121%illlia, the use of observable inputs and minimize the used of unobservable inputs wheal measuring fair value. The. tandard describes

them levels of inputs that may be trtml to measure fair value:

Level I Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level I assets and liabilities include debt tend equity securities and derivative convects that are traded in an

active exchange marked, its well as U.S. Treasuries and money market funds.

Level 2 Observable inputs offer than Level I pries, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active, or °dim inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable cocker data for substmtially the Rill term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets and liabilities include debt securities

with quoted prices that are traded less firtquoitly than exchangotradml histnimods, mortgage-backed securities, municipal bonds, corporate debt securities, and derivative

contracts whose vi Inc is efNermined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market or can be daived principally limn or corroborated) by observable

market data. This category generally includes certain derivative etintracts and impaired loans.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by lisle or no market activity and that /ire significant to the lair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and habil itim include

financial instrumous whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted' cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments tire which the

determination of fair value requires signifimint management judgment or estimation, For example, dos category generally includes certain private equity investmous,

retainml residual interests ism semidtizations, residential mortgage, ervicing rights, and highly-structured or long-tent derivative contrite.

Quoted Market

Price in active

Markets

(Level I)

Significant

Oilier

Observable

Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant

Unobservable

Inputs

(Level 3)

Available for

Sale Sex:milieu

55,125,218

Mortgage Loans

Held for Sale

10,447,997

Total 65,573,213
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The Company has no liabilities canied at Fair value or measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis

The Company is predominantly an asset based lender with real estate serving as collateral on a subattunial majority of loans. Loans which are doeined to he Unpaired are primarily valued on a nonnsurring basis at the No valuer of the underlying real

eslate collateral. Such fair values are obtained using independent appraisals, which the Company 001151(i S to he level 2 inputs. The aggregate carrying anmont of impaired loans at lune 30, 2008 was 03,308,463.

http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v
123121 _10q.htm 2/13/2009

http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm
http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm
http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm
http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm
http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm


Shares

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Exercise Exercise

Price Shares Price

14.95 107,985 S 14.95Outstanding at June 30 93,981 S

2008 2007For the Three Months Ended June 311,

A summary of die status of the Company's stock appreciation rights as oldie six and three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 is presented below,

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

Outstanding at January I

Grant.'

Exercised

Porleit.1

Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price Shares

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Price

2008 2007

93,981 S 14.9.5 45,5114 $ 14.87

62,481 15.00
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Erideirdscs_LI vi I  Issued Acc0untinp Pronoun ce menti- ennieni.d

EASE Starr Position No FAS 157-2 delays the implerormation of SPAS 157 until the First quart. of 2009 with rbspect to goodwill, other intangible assets, real rotate and other a.ssent acquired through foreclosure and other non-finalwial assets

ineasterexl at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

The Company has no assets or liabilities whose fair values are measured using level 3 inputs.

Other imetiunting standards that have been issued or proposed by the EASE or other standards-seiting bodies are not expectal to have a material impact on the Company's financed position, results of operations or cash Bows.

Note 3 - Eouity Incentive Plan

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company adopted the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan. The 2000 Equity Incentive Plan provides for the granting of dividend equivalemt rights, options, performance unit awards, phantom shares, stock appr o

rights, and stock swards of up to 350,010) shares or the Company's common stock to officers, employe., directors, consultants, and other service providers or die Company, or any Affiliate of the Company.

During the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the Company granted 0 sod 62,481 stock appreciation rights, respectively. A stock appreciation right entitles an individual to receive the excess or die fair market valve from die point date m the

exercise date in it settlement or Commuly stock. The Company has funderl the liability through charges to earnings. The roomed liability for the stock appreciation rights at ittila 3(1, 2008 was 3139,012.

During the three months ended lune 30, 2008 and 2007, the company did not issue any stock appreciation rights.

Outstanding at April I 93,901 14.95 1 07,985 3 14.95

Granted
-

Exercised

Forreiterl

Outstanding at June 30 93,981 S 14.99 107,985	S 14.95    

-10-
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

„ e, i
phn

 -

During the six iind three months ended lone 30, 2008, the Company granted 14,059 and 50 shares of restricted stock, respectively, pursuant to the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan. The shares "cliff” vests in three years. Compensation cost associatuI with1

the grain was 067,068 and 137.1153 for the six and three months ended June 30, 20(18, rcspemtively.

The Following table shows the Mange in the Company's restricted stock for the. ix and three months .41.1 June 30, 2008:

Six months Three months

Outstanding at January I, and April 1, respectively 16,195 28,385

Granted
14,059 50

Exereistd (1,819)

Forfeitixi

Outstanding at June 30, 2008 28,435 28.435

Note 4 - Stock Compensation Plan

On June 19, 2003, the Company establishes! the 2003 First Reliance Bank Employee Stock Option Plan (Stock Plan) that provides for the granting of options to purch ase up to 250,000 Mu. of the Company's common stock to dirmors, officers, or

employe. orthe Company. This plan was preceded by the 1999 First Reliance Bank Employee Stock Opine Plan, which provided for the grinding or options to purchase up to 238,000 shares of the Company's common stock to directors, o fficers,  or

tanployeas of the Company. The per-share exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the Stock Plan may not he lass than the fair market value of a share on the date of grant. The per-share exercise price of stock options granted is

dctemined by the Board of Directors. The expiration date ninny option may not he tp.ta than ten y.ws from the date of grant. Options that expire tinexcreised or are emeeled become available for reissuanow At Hum 30, 2008, Due were no options

available for grant under die 2003 plan and no options available for grant under the 1999 plan

The following shows the MAWS mane Company's stock option plan an lime 30, 20(18 and die changes in die plan for the six and three months ended M. 30, 2008:

Six months ended Three months ended

Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Shares 	Price Shares 	Price 

Outstanding, at January I, and April I, respectively 278,847 5 8.32 271,847 S 8.35

Granted

Exercise( (4,700) 5.00 (200) 5.00

Forfeit.] (2,500) II.140

Outstanding at June 30, 2008 271,047	S 8.35 271,647 5 8.35

http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm 2/13/2009

http://idea.see.gov/Arehives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121_10q.htm


Page 12 of 41

FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

S I

The following schalule reconciles the numerators anti denominators of the basic and diluted carnings per share computations for dm six and three month periods ended June 30. 2008 and 2007, Dilutive common sharev arise from the potentially

dilutive effect of the company's stock options and warrants that are outstanding. The assumed conversion of stock operas and warrants can create a difference between basic ;Ind dilutive n t income per common share.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2008

Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic earnings per share

income available to common shareholders

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options

Non vestui restricted stock

1,509,54-4 3,504,070 .5 11.43

 

25,108

3,404 

Diluted earnings per share

Income available to common shareholders

plus assumed conversions 5 1,509,544 3,532,672 $ 0.43

Six Months Ended June 30,2007

Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic earnings per share

Income available to contrimil shareholders

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options

Non trusted restricted stock

1,614,915 3,445,007 5 0.47

 

1 04,857

79 

Diluted earnings per share

Income available to common shareholder

Plus assumed conversions 1,614,915 3,540,903 5 0.45

Three Months Ended June 30, 2008

Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

Basic earnings per share

Income available to common shareholders 683,421 3,513,278 S 0.20

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 28,435

Non - vested ristrimed stock  6,842    

Diluted earnings per share

Income available to common shareholders

plus assumul conversions 683,421 3,550,555 5 0.211     

-12-
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

ntn r Sli r c ontinuer!

Basic earnings per share

Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

Income

(Numerator)me rotor)

Shares

(Denominator)

Per Share

Amount

Income available to common shareholders 907,708 3,457,850 S 11.26

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 78,010

Non - vested restricted stook

Diluted earnings per share

Income availahle to common shareholders

plus assion.leonversions 907,708 3,535,861 S 0.26

Note fi -Con :mho:sive Income

The components of other comprehensive income amt related !Teets are tee follows:

Pre-tax

Amount

Tax

Benefit

Net-of-tax

A111 .11(

For the his Months Ended June 30, 2008:

Unrealized loss. on securities availahle-far-sale (1,156,595) S 393,242 S (763,353)

Reclassification adjustment Rr gains (losses)

realized in net income

(1,156,595) S 393,242 $ (763,353)

For the Six Months Ended Joins 30, 2007:

Unrealizxd losses on smuriti. available-for-sale (659,328) S 223,387 5 (435,941)

Reclassification attic:toms-it the gains (loss.)

realic.1 in net income 3,496 (1,189) 2,307

(055,832) S 222,198 S (433„91)

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2008:

Unrealicod Rssis on securities available-Re-sale (1,301,521) S 442,517 S (859,004)

Reclassification adjustmun for gains (losses)

realical in net income

(1,301,521) 5 442,517 5 (859,994)

For the Three Months Ended June 30,2007:

Unreal:ass: loss. en securities available-for-sale (710,552) 5 241,232 9 (409,320)

Reclassification adjUSERILIII for gains (loss.)

realized in nor income 2,475 (842) 1,033

(708,077) 5 240,39(1 S (467,687)

Ant:lanoline,' other comprehensive iuconme consists solely of net unrealical gains and loss. nn occoeities available for sale, nee of the deferred tax effects.

-13-

http://idea.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121  10q.htm 2/13/2009

http://idea.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408047113/v123121


Page 33 of 75

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
First Reliance Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiary
Florence, South Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Reliance Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of First Reliance Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the consolidated results of their
operations and cash flows for each of the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Elliott Davis; LLC
Columbia, South Carolina
February 9, 2006
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents:

December 31,

2005 2004

Cash and due from banks 7,264,897 $ 3,803,535
Federal funds sold 22,442,000 1,042,000

Total cash and cash equivalents 29,706,897 4,845,535

Investment securities:

Securities available-for-sale 37,121,479 28,567,666
Noninarketable equity securities 1,745,850 1,714,700
Investment in trust 310,000

Total investment securities 39,177,329 30,282,366

Loans held for sale 7,994,603 1,332,890

Loans receivable 311,544,385 238,362,092

Less allowance for loan losses (3,419,368) (2,758,225)

Loans, net 308,125,017 235,603,867
Premises, furniture and equipment, net 10,020,537 5,891,402
Accrued interest receivable 2,189,742 1,458,673
Other real estate owned 345,550 320,598
Cash surrender value life insurance 3,752,165 3,415,582
Other assets 1,726,044 1,819,970

Total assets $ 403,037,884 $ 284,970,883

IiMERIS:031E.5115.110.IER

Liabilities:
Deposits:

Noninterest-bearing transaction accounts 39,222,574 $ 27,560,581
Interest-bearing transaction accounts 29,437,107 15,525,590
Savings 79,663,175 46,299,198
Time deposits $100,000 and over 113,268,921 93,975,912
Other time deposits 72,845,121 42,132,546

Total deposits 334,436,898 225,493,827
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 3,859,904 3,061,903
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 23,500,000 27,900,000
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000
Accrued interest payable 446,303 742,017
Other liabilities 834,144 414,487

Total liabilities 373,387,249 257,612,234

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 5 and 14)
Shareholders' Equity:

Common stock, $0,01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; 3,306,117 and 3,203,942 shares issued and

outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively 33,061 32,039
Capital surplus 24,127,329 23,428,034
Treasury stock (800 shares in 2005 and 600 shares in 2004) (9,896) (7,396)
Retained earnings 5,611,847 3,664,301
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (111,706) 241,671

Total shareholders' equity 29,650,635 27,358,649

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 403,037,884 $ 284,970,883

IMPIEUIIMMIBMIMME11 NUMPiSIB IN

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Interest income:
Loans, including fees $ 21,236,608 $ 12,094,388
Investment securities:

Taxable 770,863 723,439
Tax exempt 553,993 415,347

Federal funds sold 478,597 16,942
Other interest income 91,051 40,365

Total 23,131,112 13,290,481

Interest expense:
Time deposits $100,000 and over 3,485,397 1,870,930
Other deposits 4,097,836 1,627,009
Other interest expense 1,395,446 563,129

Total 8,978,679 4,061,068

Net interest income 14,152,433 9,229,413
Provision for loan losses 1,811,317 1,361,762

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 12,341,116 7,867,651

Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accounts 1,357,214 1,231,759
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 877,843 584,023
Brokerage fees 160,569 131,626
Credit life insurance commissions 32,606 82,090
Other service charges, commissions, and fees 206,783 145,403
Gain on sale of securities available-for-sale 5,971
Loss on sale of other real estate (66,815) (55,966)
Loss on sale of fixed assets (287) (20,000)
Other 303,374 274,617

Total 2,871,287 2,379,523

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and benefits 7,136,376 4,874,035
Occupancy 919,584 425,686
Furniture and equipment related expenses 712,308 616,186
Other operating 3,707,173 2,422,035

Total 12,475,441 8,337,942

Income before income taxes 2,736,962 1,909,232
Income tax expense 789,416 570,533

Net income 1,947,546 5 1,338,699
IMINSISSIMMINIMAIMMOINSI

Earnings per share:
Basic 0.60 0.52

itailinaMNEMBSUSMINSI IIIENIMERRIMPARSIMINI

Diluted 0.57 0.48

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

Common Stock

Capital
Surplus

Treasury Retained
Stock Earnings

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss) TotalShares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2003 2,466,660 $ 24,667 $ 15,106,070 $ — $ 2,325,602 $ 246,300 $ 17,702,639

Net income 1,338,699 1,338,699
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax benefit

of 62,384 (4,629) (4,629)

Comprehensive income 1,334,070
Proceeds from stock issuance 700,000 7,000 8,043,000 8,050,000
Costs associated with stock offering (75,960) (75,960)
Issuance of shares to ESOP 37,282 372 354,924 355,296
Purchase of treasury stock (7,396) (7,396)

Balance, December 31, 2004 3,203,942 32,039 23,426,034 (7,396) 3,664,301 241,671 27,358,649
Net income 1,947,546 1,947,546
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax benefit

of $182,043 (353,377) (353,377)

Comprehensive income 1,594,169
Purchase of treasury stock (2,500) (2,500)
Issuance of shares to ESOP 23,175 232 298,725 298,957
Exercise of stock options 79,000 790 400,570 401,360

Balance, December 31, 2005 3,306,117 33,061 24,127,329 (9,896) $ 5,611,847 $ (111,706) $ 29,650,635

11.e g21.4MISiSii1E.PSE SMASVIMIEM.185....f IIIMSEMEEME.1551.8.1411 BEdEggigaSOESIME568.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 • 2004

1,947,546 $ 1,338,699

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 1,811,317 1,361,762
Depreciation and amortization expense 658,255 548,822
Gain on sales of securities available-for-sales (5,971)
Discount accretion and premium amortization 86,839 108,066
Disbursements for mortgages held for sale (74,459,914) (25,160,598)
Proceeds from sales of mortgages held for sale 67,798,201 24,799,335
Writedown of other real estate owned 45,750 58,000
(Gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned (8,735) 18,815
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) (136,148) (50,801)
Increase in interest receivable (774,975) (509,010)
Decrease in interest payable (251,808) 299,784
(Increase) decrease in other assets 75,534 (3,989,862)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 419,657 116,997

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (2,788,481) (1,065,962)

Cash flows front investing activities:
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (13,757,943) (11,232,623)
Maturities of securities available-for-sale 4,581,871 4,268,455
Proceeds from sales of nonmarketable equity securities 1,629,000 5,976,385
Purchases of nonmarketable equity securities (1,660,150) (839,700)
Purchase of junior subordinated debentures (310,000) —
Proceeds from the sales of nonmarketable equity securities 180,000
Net increase in loans receivable (74,687,811) (99,355,322)
Purchases of premises, furniture and equipment (4,815,411) (643,405)
Proceeds from disposal of premises, furniture and equipment 28,021 —
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 293,377 408,455

Net cash used by investing activities (88,699,046) (101,737,755)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase in demand deposits, interest-bearing transaction accounts and savings accounts 58,937,487 36,217,217
Net increase in certificates of deposit and other time deposits 50,005,584 49,861,660
Increase (decrease) in advances from Federal Home Loan Bank (4,400,000) 8,800,000
Increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased — (1,043,000)

Net increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 798,001 698,333
Proceeds from junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000 —
Stock issuance costs (75,960)
Exercise of stock options 401,360 —
Proceeds from stock issuance — 8,050,000
Issuance of shares to ESOP 298,957 355,296
Purchase of treasury stock (2,500) (7,396)

Net cash provided by financing activities 116,348,889 102,856,150

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24,861,362 52,433
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4,845,535 4,793,102

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 5 29,706,897 5 4,845,535
IMENEENISIMENSIONSIIIIIM

Cash paid (luring the year for:
Income taxes 763,000 S 658,331

ailIMOMINIALSVOMMOU

9,274,393Interest $ 3,761,284

INGISOMMUNSUMNI.MMIS

Supplemental noncash investing and financing activities:
Foreclosures on loans 5 355,344 S 526,475
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - First Reliance Bancshares, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated to serve as a bank holding company for its
subsidiary, First Reliance Bank (the Bank). First Reliance Bank was incorporated on August 9, 1999 and commenced
business on August 16, 1999. The principal business activity of the Bank is to provide banking services to domestic markets,
principally in Florence, Lexington, and Charleston Counties in South Carolina. The Bank is a state-chartered commercial
Bank, and its deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. In 2005, the Company formed First
Reliance Capital Trust 1 (the "Trust") for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities. The Trust is not consolidated in
these financial statements. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the parent company and its wholly-
owned subsidiary after elimination of all significant intercompany balances and transactions.

Management's Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for
losses on loans, including valuation allowances for impaired loans, and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection
with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In connection with the determination of the allowances for losses on loans and
foreclosed real estate, management obtains independent appraisals for significant properties. Management must also make
estimates in determining the estimated useful lives and methods for depreciating premises and equipment.

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, future additions to the
allowances may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral
part of their examination process, periodically review the Company's allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real
estate. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about
information available to them at the time of their examinations. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the
allowances for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate may change materially in the near term.

Concentrations of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk, consist principally of loans receivable, investment securities, federal funds sold and amounts clue from banks.

The Company makes loans to individuals and small businesses for various personal and commercial purposes primarily in
Florence, Lexington, Charleston and Mount Pleasant, South Carolina. At December 31, 2005, the majority of the total loan
portfolio was to borrowers from within these areas.

The Company's loan portfolio is not concentrated in loans to any single borrower or a relatively small number of borrowers.
Additionally, management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to groups of borrowers or industries that would be
similarly affected by economic conditions.

In addition to monitoring potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers, industries and
geographic regions, Management monitors exposure to credit risk from concentrations of lending products and practices such
as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g. principal deferral periods, loans with initial interest-
only periods, etc), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios. Management has determined that there is no concentration of
credit risk associated with its lending policies or practices.

Additionally, there are industry practices that could subject the Company to increased credit risk should economic conditions
change over the course of a loan's life. For example, the Company makes variable rate loans and fixed rate principal-
amortizing loans with maturities prior to the loan being fully paid (i.e. balloon payment loans). These loans are underwritten
and monitored to manage the associated risks. Therefore, management believes that these particular practices do not subject
the Company to unusual credit risk,

The Company's investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States and its agencies or its
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corporations. In the opinion of Management, there is no concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio. The
Company places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high quality institutions.
Management believes credit risk associated with correspondent accounts is not significant.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Securities Available-for-Sale  - Securities available-for-sale are carried at amortized cost and adjusted to estimated market
value by recognizing the aggregate unrealized gains or losses in a valuation account. Aggregate market valuation
adjustments are recorded in shareholders' equity net of deferred income taxes. Reductions in market value considered by
management to be other than temporary are reported as a realized loss and a reduction in the cost basis of the security. The
adjusted cost basis of investments available-for-sale is determined by specific identification and is used in computing the gain
or loss upon sale.

Nonmarketable Equity Securities  - Nomnarketable equity securities include the cost of the Company's investment in the
stock of Federal Home Loan Bank and the stock of another community bank holding company. The stock has no quoted
market value and no ready market exists. Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank is a condition of borrowing from the
Federal Home Loan Bank, and the stock is pledged to collateralize such borrowings. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the
Company's investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock was $1,627,100 and $1,614,700, respectively. Dividends received
on this stock are included as a separate component of interest income. In 2003, the Company purchased $100,000 of
common stock in Tidelands Bancshares, Inc., the holding company for Tidelands Bank in Mount Pleasant, South Carolina.
Its investment in this stock was $100,000 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In 2005 the company purchased
$18,750 of common stock in Beach First National Bancshares, Inc. Its investment in this stock was $18,750 at December
31,2005.

Loans receivable - Loans receivable are stated at their unpaid principal balance. Interest income is computed using the
simple interest method and is recorded in the period earned.

When serious doubt exists as to the collectibility of a loan or when a loan becomes contractually ninety days past due as to
principal or interest, interest income is generally discontinued unless the estimated net realizable value of collateral exceeds
the principal balance and accrued interest. When interest accruals are discontinued, income earned but not collected is
reversed.

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs (principally salaries and employee benefits)
are deferred and amortized to income over the contractual life of the related loans or commitments, adjusted for prepayments,
using the straight-line method:

Impaired loans are measured based on the present value of discounted expected cash flows. When it is determined that a loan
is impaired, a direct charge to bad debt expense is made for the difference between the net present value of expected future
cash flows based on the contractual rate and discount rate and the Company's recorded investment in the related loan. The
corresponding entry is to a related allowance account. Interest is discontinued on impaired loans when management
determines that a borrower may be unable to meet payments as they become due.

Allowance for Loan Losses - An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level deemed appropriate by management to
provide adequately for known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The allowance is based upon a continuing review of
past loan loss experience, current and future economic conditions which may affect the borrowers' ability to pay and the
underlying collateral value of the loans. Loans, which are deemed to be uncollectible, are charged off and deducted from the
allowance. The provision for loan losses and recoveries of loans previously charged off are added to the allowance.

Residential Mortgages Held-For-Sale - The Company's mortgage activities are comprised of accepting residential
mortgage loan applications, qualifying borrowers to standards established by investors, funding residential mortgages and
selling mortgages to investors under pre-existing commitments. Funded residential mortgages held temporarily for sale to
investors are recorded at the lower of cost or market value. Application and originations fees collected by the Company are
recognized as income upon sale to the investor.

Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned includes real estate acquired through foreclosure. Other real estate
owned is carried at the lower of cost (principal balance at the date of foreclosure) or fair value minus estimated costs to sell.
Any write-downs at the date of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Expenses to maintain such assets,
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subsequent changes in the valuation allowance, and gains and losses on disposal are included in other expenses.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Premises, Furniture and Equipment - Premises, furniture and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
The provision for depreciation is computed by the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful lives for buildings of
40 years and furniture and equipment of 5 to 10 years. Leasehold improvements are being amortized over 20 years. The cost
of assets sold or otherwise disposed of and the related allowance for depreciation is eliminated from the accounts and the
resulting gains or losses are reflected in the income statement when incurred. Maintenance and repairs are charged to current
expense. The costs of major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

Residential Mortua e0_rigination Fees Residential mortgage orgination fees include fees from residential mortgage loans
originated by the Company and subsequently sold in the secondary market. These fees are recognized as income at the time
of the sale to the investor.

Income Taxes - Income taxes are the sum of amounts currently payable to taxing authorities and the net changes in income
taxes payable or refundable in future years. Income taxes deferred to future years are determined utilizing a liability
approach. This method gives consideration to the future tax consequences associated with differences between financial
accounting and tax bases of certain assets and liabilities which are principally the allowance for loan losses and depreciable
premises and equipment.

Adir_ Expense - Advertising and public relations costs are generally expensed as incurred. External costs incurred in
producing media advertising are expensed the first time the advertising takes place. External costs relating to direct mailing
costs are expended in the period in which the direct mailings are sent. Advertising and public relations costs of $291,903 and
$124,448, were included in the Company's results of operations for 2005 and 2004.

Retirement Benefits - A trusteed retirement savings plan is sponsored by the Company and provides retirement benefits to
substantially all officers and employees who meet certain age and service requirements. The plan includes a "salary
reduction" feature pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In 2004, the Company converted the 401(k)
plan to a 404(c) plan. The 404 (c) plan changes investment alternatives to include the Company's stock. Under the plan and
present policies, participants are permitted to make contributions up to 15% of their annual compensation. At its discretion,
the Company can make matching contributions up to 6% of the participants' compensation. The Company charged $169,112
and $1 12,636 to earnings for the retirement savings plan in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In 2004, the Company enacted a Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS) plan and Virtual Stock Plan which serve as deferred
compensation for its executives. Both policies are based on the appreciation of the Company's stock over the executive's
service period during which time the Company accrues the deferred compensation based on the number of notional shares the
executive is granted. The granting of the notional shares under both plans is at the discretion of the Company's Board of
Directors. Both plans have required service periods for the executives to become vested in the retirement benefits. Each plan
pays out the executives over a 180 month period following their retirement. During 2004 the Company recognized $ 4,638 in
compensation expense related to the Virtual Stock Plan and no expense related to the SARS Plan. During 2005 there were no
expenses related to these plans and as of December 3], 2005, both the Virtual Stock Plan and SARS have been canceled.

Stock-Based Compensation  - The Company has a stock-based employee compensation plan which is further described in
Note 16. The Company accounts for the plan under the recognition and measurement principles of Accounting Principles
Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations. No stock-based
employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all stock options granted under these plans had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on
net income and earnings per share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Financial
Accounting Standards Board ("EASB") Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Stock-Based Compensation - continued

Net income, as reported
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effects

Pro forma net income

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

1,947,546

767,326

$ 1,338,699

234,770

1,180,220 5 1,103,929

Earnings per share:

11.1i2WA.S30:1,1.ZagE...1

Basic - as reported 5 0.60 5 0.52

Basic - pro forma S 0.36 $ 0.43
PESIME130.6.31 :031 16ASS

Diluted - as reported 5 0.57 5 0.48

Diluted - pro forma S 0.34

IIMMISNIMEIEWSEARSIIEE.

$ 0.40
IMSFERWEE/23.212.70SIEStil SAVEMIENR.5.59B5101.211

In calculating the pro forma disclosures, the fair value of options granted is estimated as of the date granted using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004

Dividend yield 0.00% 0,00%
Expected volatility 38.22% 44.47%
Risk-free interest rate 4.17% 4.38%
Expected life 8 years 10 years

The Financial Accounting Standards Board recently published Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No.
123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123(R), which is effective on January 1, 2006,
and will require that the fair value of share-based payments to employees, including stock options, be recognized as
compensation expense in the statement of income in the financial statements. Accordingly, the Company will implement the
revised standard on January 1, 2006. Currently, the Company accounts for its share-based payment transactions under the
provisions of APB No. 25, under which it has not recognized any compensation expense for its stock option grants and
related accounting interpretations, including FASB Interpretation Number 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions
hivolving Stock Compensation" ("FIN No. 44") in accounting for stock options.

On July 12, 2005, the board of directors approved accelerating the vesting of all unvested stock options. The accelerated
vesting was effective as of June 30, 2005. All of the other terms and conditions applicable to the outstanding stock options
remained unchanged.

The decision to accelerate vesting of these options will avoid recognition of pre-tax compensation expense by the Company
upon the adoption of SFAS 123(R). In the Company's view, the future compensation expense could outweigh the incentive
and retention value associated with the stock options. The future pre-tax compensation expense that will be avoided, based
upon the effective date of January 1, 2006, is expected to be approximately $419,263 and $108,981 in fiscal years 2006 and
2007, respectively. The Company believes that the acceleration of vesting stock options meets the criteria for variable
accounting under FIN No. 44. Based upon past experience, the Company believes the grantees of these stock options will
remain as a director or employee of the Company.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Common Stock Owned by the 401 Plan and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) - All shares held by the 401(k)
and ESOP Plans, collectively referred to as the 404 (c), are treated as outstanding for purposes of computing earnings per
share. 404 (C) purchases and redemptions of the Company's common stock are at estimated fair value as determined by
independent valuations. Dividends on 404 (c) shares are charged to retained earnings. At December 31, 2005, the 404 (c)
owned 66,991 shares of the Company's common stock with an estimated value of $1,038,361. At December 31, 2004, the
404 (c) owned 38,782 shares of the Company's common stock with an estimated value of $486,714. All of these shares were
allocated. Contributions to the 404 (c) in 2005 and 2004 were $169,112 and $112,636, respectively.

Ea rn inus Per Share - Basic earnings per share represents income available to shareholders divided by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect additional common shares that
would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. Potential common shares that may be
issued by the Company relate solely to outstanding stock options and are determined using the treasury stock method (see
Note 15).

Comprehensive Income - Accounting principles generally require that recognized income, expenses, gains, and losses be
included in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net
income, are components of comprehensive income.

The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects are as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale:

Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities
Tax effect

Net-of-tax amount -

2005 2004

(535,420) 5 (7,014)

(5,971)

(535,420) (12,985)
182,043 8,356

5 (353,377) $ (4,629)
111.111 11.0118.011111 OffilMMINIREM101071211•11=

Statements of Cash Flows - For purposes of reporting cash flows in the consolidated financial statements, the Company
considers certain highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents include amounts due from banks and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are sold for one-day
periods.

Changes in the valuation account of securities available-for-sale, including the deferred tax effects, are considered noncash
transactions for purposes of the statement of cash flows and are presented in detail in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments - In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into off-balance-sheet
financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit and letters of credit. These financial instruments are
recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they become payable by the customer.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- continued

Recent Accounting  Pronouncements - The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that affect
accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information by the Company:

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards ("SFAS") No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123(R)"). SFAS No. 123(R) will require
companies to measure all employee stock-based compensation awards using a fair value method and record such expense in
its financial statements. In addition, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) requires additional accounting and disclosures related
to the income tax and cash flow effects resulting from share-based payment arrangements. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective
beginning as of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15, 2005. SFAS No. 123(R) allows for adoption
using either the modified prospective or modified retrospective methods. The Company anticipates using the modified
prospective method when this statement is adopted in the first quarter of 2006. The Company has evaluated the impact upon
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and has concluded that the adoption will not have a material impact on financial position or
results of operations upon adoption.

In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission's Office of the Chief Accountant and its Division of Corporation
Finance issued Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107 to provide guidance regarding the application of SFAS No. 123
(R). SAB No. 107 provides interpretive guidance related to the interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and certain SEC rules
and regulations, as well as the staff's views regarding the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for public
companies. SAB No. 107 also reminds public companies of the importance of including disclosures within filings made with
the SEC relating to the accounting for share-based payment transactions, particularly during the transition to SFAS No. 123
(R).

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, "Exchanges of Nonmonetaiy Assets - an amendment of APB Opinion
No. 29". The standard is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured based on the fair
value of the assets exchanged and eliminates the exception under ABP Opinion No. 29 for an exchange of similar productive
assets and replaces it with an exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A
nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as
a result of the exchange. The standard is effective for nonmonetary exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 153 is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position or
results of operations.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3". SFAS No. 154 establishes retrospective application as the required method for reporting
a change in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable, in which case the changes should be applied to the latest
practicable date presented. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a correction of an error be reported as a prior period adjustment
by restating prior period financial statements. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005.

In March 2004, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 03-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and its Application to Certain Investments". This issue addresses the meaning of other-than-
temporary impairment and its application to investments classified as either available for sale or held to maturity under SFAS
No. 115 and it also provides guidance on quantitative and qualitative disclosures. The disclosure requirements in paragraph
21 of this Issue were effective for annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2003 and were
adopted by the Company effective December 31, 2003.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Recent Accounting  Pronouncements  (continued) - The recognition and measurement guidance in paragraphs 6-20 of this
Issue was to be applied to other-than-temporary impairment evaluations in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2004,
but was delayed by FASB action in October 2004 through the issuance of a proposed FASB Staff Position ("FSP") on the
issue. In July 2005, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 - The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment
and its Application to Certain Investments". This final guidance eliminated paragraphs 10-18 of EITF-03-1 (paragraphs 19-
20 have no material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company) and will be effective for other-
than-temporary impairment analysis conducted in periods beginning after December 15, 2005. The Company has evaluated
the impact that the adoption of FSP FAS 115-1 and FAS 124-1 and has concluded that the adoption will not have a material
impact on financial position and results of operations upon adoption.

In December 2005, the FASB issued FSP SOP 94-6-1, "Terms of Loan Products that May Give Rise to a Concentration of
Credit Risk". The disclosure guidance in this FSP is effective for interim and annual periods ending after December 19,
2005. The FSP states that the terms of certain loan products may increase a reporting entity's exposure to credit risk and
thereby may result in a concentration of credit risk as that term is used in SPAS No. 107, either as an individual product type
or as a group of products with similar features. SPAS No. 107 requires disclosures about each significant concentration,
including "information about the (shared) activity, region, or economic characteristic that identifies the concentration." The
FSP suggests possible shared characteristics on which significant concentrations may be determined which include, but are
not limited to borrowers subject to significant payment increases, loans with terms that permit negative amortization and
loans with high loan-to-value ratios.

This FSP requires entities to provide the disclosures required by SFAS No. 107 for loan products that are determined to
represent a concentration of credit risk in accordance with the guidance of this FSP for all periods presented. The Company
adopted this disclosure standard effective December 31, 2005.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not
require adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements upon
adoption.

Risks and Uncertainties - In the normal course of its business, the Company encounters two significant types of risks:
economic and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk.
The Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different
speeds, or on different basis, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company's loan portfolio
that results from borrower's inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes
in the value of collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the Company.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. These regulations can and do change
significantly from period to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies, which
may subject it to further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances and operating
restrictions from the regulators' judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Reclassifications - Certain captions and amounts in the 2004 consolidated financial statements were reclassified to conform
with the 2005 presentation.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 2 - CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Company is required to maintain balances with The Federal Reserve computed as a percentage of deposits. At
December 31, 2005 and 2004, this requirement was $ 1,205,000 and $1,105,000, respectively. This requirement was met by
vault cash and balances on deposit with the Federal Reserve.

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities available-for-sale were:

December 31, 2005

Amortized
Cost

Gross Unrealized

Estimated
Fair ValueGains Losses

U.S. Government agencies $ 9,553,869 $ — $ 114,625 $ 9,439,244

Mortgage-backed securities 13,790,202 17,682 378,270 13,429,614

Municipals 13,947,622 327,337 22,338 14,252,621

$ 37,291,693 S 345,019 $ 515,233 5 37,121,479
ligagliffeRIEIMEEEMOINIffail

December 31, 2004
U.S. Government agencies 2,424,872 $ 49,176 $ 2,474,048

Mortgage-backed securities 14,863,372 29,954 110,661 14,782,665

Municipals 10,914,216 398,036 1,299 11,310,953

$ 28,202,460 $ 477,166 $ 111,960 $ 28,567,666
111.311.8543.51..625111EIN.1

There were no sales of securities available-for-sale during 2005. For the year ended December 31, 2004, proceeds from the
sales of securities available-for-sale amounted to $5,976,385. Gross realized gains amounted to $5,971 for the year ended
December 31, 2004. There were no gross realized losses.

The following is a summary of maturities of securities available-for-sale as of December 31, 2005. The amortized cost and
estimated fair values are based on the contractual maturity dates. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalty.

Securities
Available-For-Sale

Amortized
Cost

Estimated
Fair Value

Due after one year but within five years 6,155,886 $ 6,086,015

Due after five years but within ten years 1,283,706 1,283,230

Due after ten years 16,061,899 16,322,620

23,501,491 23,691,865

Mortgage-backed securities 13,790,202 13,429,614

Total 37,291,693 S 37,121,479

IMIZIOSS961111116.18NIENIBE IMENNINEINEn9111n1011111111
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 3 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES  - continued

The following table shows gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category, and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2005.

Securities Available for Sale

Less than Twelve months
twelve months or more Total

U.S. government agencies
Municipals
Mortgage-backed securities

Total

Fair value
Unrealized

losses Fair value
Unrealized

losses Fair value
Unrealized

losses

9,439,244
2,298,360
1,241,120

$ 114,625
22,338
16,644

$

10,232,228 361,626

9,439,244
2,298,360

11,473,348

$ 114,625
22,338

378,270

$ 12,978,724 $ 153,607 5 10,232,228 5 361,626 5 23,210,952 $ 515,233

ISRESNEMSMINFRIZIRE.1.11 IliSSUBIONCE220.2.85/Eflia

Securities classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair market value. Approximately 71% of the unrealized losses, or
seven individual securities, consisted of securities in a continuous loss position for twelve months or more. The Company
has the ability and intent to hold these securities until such time as the value recovers or the securities mature. The Company
believes, based on industry analyst reports and credit ratings, that the deterioration in value is attributable to changes in
market interest rates and is not in the credit quality of the issuer and therefore, these losses are not considered other-than-
temporary.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, securities with amortized costs of $6,249,272 and $13,485,307 and estimated fair values of
$6,197,672 and $13,634,554 , respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required and
permitted by law.

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

Major classifications of loans receivable are summarized as follows:

Mortgage loans on real estate:

December 31,

2005 2004

Residential 1-4 family $ 50,937,658 $ 50,429,754

Multifamily 6,322,957 2,786,453

Commercial 106,125,103 63,1 83,726

Construction 52,267,759 39,023,385

Second mortgages 4,885,095 5,311,537
Equity lines of credit 24,570,163 14,179,437

245,108,735 174,919,292

Commercial and industrial 50,320,434 47,890,104

Consumer 13,953,632 13,931,133

Other 2,161,584 1,621,563

Total gross loans 5 311,544,385 5 238,362,092

11811103319.011.12071MINNBIN

The Company has pledged certain loans as collateral to secure its borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The total
of loans pledged was $211,589,263 at December 31, 2005 (see Note 8).
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE - continued

The Company identifies impaired loans through its normal internal loan review process. Loans on the Company's problem
loan watch list are considered potentially impaired loans. These loans are evaluated in determining whether all outstanding
principal and interest are expected to be collected. Loans are not considered impaired if a minimal delay occurs and all
amounts due including accrued interest at the contractual interest rate for the period of delay are expected to be collected. At
December 31, 2005, impaired loans totaled $2,778,090, and specific write downs on these loans totaled $218,287. Accrued
interest related to these loans totaled $23,053. At December 31, 2004, management believes that impaired loans closely
approximated nonaccrual loans.

Transactions in the allowance for loan losses are summarized below:

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Balance, beginning of year 2,758,225 5 1,752,282
Provision charged to operations 1,811,317 1,361,762
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off 81,813 35,156
Loans charged-off (1,231,987) (390,975)

Balance, end of year 3,419,368 S 2,758,225
Inmeaszsamogiergeamwm mnamezeemaam=a

As of December 31, 2005, there were $704,800 in loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing interest and
$1,792,702 in loans on nonaccrual status. There were $59,148 in loans past due ninety days or more and still accruing
interest and $1,186,183 in loans in nonaccrual status at December 31, 2004.

Loans sold with limited recourse are 1-4 family residential mortgages originated by the Company and sold to various other
financial institutions. These loans are sold with the agreement that a loan may be returned to the Company at any time in the
event the Company fails to provide necessary documents related to the mortgages to the buyers, or if it makes false
representations or warranties to the buyers. Loans sold under these agreements in 2005 total $67,798,201. The Company
uses the same credit policies in making loans held for sale as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments consist of commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a. customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. A commitment involves, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the
amount recognized in the balance sheet. The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other
party to the instrument is represented by the contractual notional amount of the instrument. Since certain commitments are
expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash
requirements. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments to extend credit as it does for on-balance-
sheet instruments. Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee a customer's performance to a third
party and have essentially the same credit risk as other lending facilities.

Collateral held for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant, equipment, and income-producing commercial properties.

The following table summarizes the Company's off-balance-sheet financial instruments whose contract amounts represent
credit risk:

December 31,
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2005 2004

Commitments to extend credit S 59,196,000 S 31,702,000
Standby letters of credit 1,699,000 720,000
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 5 - PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 

Premises, furniture and equipment consisted of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Land 4,655,609 1,305,609
Building 4,066,613 4,048,181
Leasehold improvements 117,197 117,197
Furniture and equipment 2,262,900 1,881,453
Construction in progress 1,017,947 22,552

Total 12,120,266 7,374,992
Less, accumulated depreciation 2,099,729 1,483,590

Premises and equipment, net 10,020,537 $ 5,891,402

IftESIOWAYBSE0iSIMISOMad

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to $658,255 and $548,822, respectively.

Construction in process consists of renovations to the Company's corporate office and architect fees and site work for the
Lexington and Mount Pleasant branches.

NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS 

At December 31, 2005, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

Maturing In Amount

2006 $ 134,481,951
2007 34,064,131
2008 11,635,457
2009 5,291,138
2010 641,365

Total 186,114,042

menewesetosmasmosemou

Included in total time deposits at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were brokered time deposits of $39,213,743 and $51,598,000,
respectively.

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings payable are securities sold under agreements to repurchase which generally mature on a one to thirty
day basis. Information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase is summarized as follows:

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Balance at end of the year 3,859,904 $ 3,061,903
Average balance during the year 3,599,716 2,460,237
Average interest rate during the year 2.54% 0.83%
Maximum month-end balance during the year 4,223,149 3,061,903
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Under the terms of the repurchase agreement, the Company sells an interest in securities issued by United States Government
agencies and agrees to repurchase the same securities the following business day. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the
par value and market value of the securities held by the third-party for the underlying agreements were $4,818,637 and
$4,901,635, respectively, and $4,791,987 and $4,833,784, respectively.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 8 - ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank consisted of the following:

Description

December 31,

Interest Rate 2005 2004

Fixed rate advances maturing:
January 18, 2005 2.24% $ 500,000
April 8, 2005 2.04% 1,000,000
July I, 2005 4.12% 500,000
February 3, 2006 3.40% 5,000,000 —

April 10, 2006 2.60% 1,000,000 1,000,000
September 12, 2006 2.66% 3,500,000
December 19, 2006 2.87% 1,500,000 1,500,000
January 12, 2007 3.72% 2,000,000 —

April 9, 2007 3.13% 1,000,000 1,000,000
July 2, 2007 3.56% 500,000 500,000
December 19, 2007 3.44% 1,500,000 1,500,000
April 8, 2008 3.46% 1,000,000 1,000,000
March 19, 2009 2.48% 3,000,000 3,000,000
December 10, 2009 2.56% 4,000,000
January 17, 2012 3,83% 1,000,001)
March 10, 2015 3.44% 6,000,000
July 5, 2012 4.08% 1,000,000

Variable rate advances maturing:
March 25, 2006 2.44% 6,900,000
July 5, 2012 4.08% 1,000,000

$ 23,500,000 27,900,000
11110GIESSIMME. liEMIEWRIMISSE32ffin010

Scheduled principal reductions of Federal Home Loan Bank advances are as follows:

Amount

2006 $ 7,500,000
2007 5,000,000
2008 1,000,000
2009 3,000,000
2010 —

Thereafter 7,000,000

Total $ 23,500,000
WIDSSESNIMINIMINSIMMIN

As collateral, the Company had pledged blanket liens on its first mortgage one to four family loans, its multifamily
residential property loans, and its revolving, open-end loans secured by 1-4 family residential properties and extended under
lines of credit. The aggregate balance of these loan types was 8211,589,263 (see Note 4) at December 31, 2005. In addition,
the Company's Federal Home Loan Bank stock is pledged to secure the borrowings. Certain advances are subject to
prepayment penalties.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 9 - JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 

On June 30, 2005 the Company formed First Reliance Capital Trust I (the "Trust") for the purposed of issuing trust preferred
securities, which enable the Company to obtain Tier 1 capital on a consolidated basis for regulatory purposes. On July 1,
2005, the Company closed a private offering of $10,000,000 of floating rate preferred securities offered and sold by the
Trust. The proceeds from such issuance, together with the proceeds from a related issuance of common securities of the
Trust purchased by the Company in the amount of $310,000, were invested by the Trust in floating rate Junior Subordinated
Debentures issued by the Company (the "Debentures") totaling $10,310,000. The Debentures are due and payable on
November 23, 2035 and may be redeemed by the Company after five years, and sooner in certain specific events, including
in the event that certain circumstances render the Debentures ineligible for treatment as Tier 1 capital, subject to prior
approval by the Federal Reserve Board, if then required. The Debentures presently qualify as Tier 1 capital for regulatory
reporting. The sole assets of the Trust are the Debentures. The Company owns 100% of the common securities of the Trust.
The Debentures are unsecured and rank junior to all senior debt of the Company. At December 31, 2005, the floating rate
preferred securities and the Debentures had an annual interest rate of 5.93%. This interest rate is fixed until August 23, 2010,
when the interest rate will adjust quarterly. After August 23, 2010, the interest rate will equal three-month LIBOR plus
1.83%.

NOTE 10 - RESTRICTIONS ON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

South Carolina banking regulations restrict the amount of dividends that can be paid to shareholders. All of the Bank's
dividends to First Reliance Bancshares, Inc. are payable only from the undivided profits of the Bank. At December 31, 2005,
the Bank had undivided profits of $5,623,976. The Bank is authorized to upstream 100% of net income in any calendar year
without obtaining the prior approval of the Commissioner of Banking provided that the Bank received a composite rating of
one or two at the last Federal or State regulatory examination. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, the amounts of
loans or advances from the Bank to the parent company are also restricted.

NOTE 11 - OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other operating expenses are summarized below:

Professional fees
Office supplies, forms, and stationery
Advertising
Data processing and supplies
Employee education and conventions
Computer supplies and software amortization
Telephone
Directors fees
Other

Total

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

5 377,356
224,235
291,903

20,616
60,015

483,168
153,922
138,600

1,957,358

$ 193,034
144,798
124,448

12,597
48,502

342,487
121,249
91,100

1,343,820

3,707,173 5 2,422,035
1738NNOWILSEMSNOVIIMMOVI INERNIIIHMNIMMISSE6288131
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 12 - INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense is summarized as follows:

Currently payable

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Federal 828,285 $ 707,796
State 97,745 66,667

Total current 926,030 774,463

Deferred income taxes (318,657) (206,314)

Total income tax expense 607,373 $ 568,149

RE:M..n.aTzUBMSZ.S3 13

Income tax expense is allocated as follows:
To continuing operations 789,416 570,533
To shareholders' equity (182,043) (2,384)

607,373 $ 568,149

158.40,59.21Maismaaltiagisl 1.1063ECMURVEDienfaleamil

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losses
Organizational costs
Deferred compensation
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale
Other

Total gross deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale
Accumulated depreciation
Prepaid expenses
Other

Total gross deferred tax liabilities

December 31,

2005 2004

$ 914,956
6,013

65,027
58,508
35,882

8 814,656
15,349

26,996

1,080,386

--

180,792
57,232
31,626

857,001

123,535
241,387

269,650 364,922

Net deferred as asset recognized S 810,736 $ 492,079

1110111BM3113161121;81.4.11:611.11

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and, if it is more likely than not that a tax asset
will not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable value. As of
December 31, 2005, management has determined that it is more likely than not that the total deferred tax asset will be
realized and, accordingly, has not established a valuation allowance. Net  deferred tax assets are included in other assets at
December 31, 2005 and 2004.

A reconciliation between the income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the federal statutory rate of 34% to
income before income taxes follows:
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For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Tax expense at statutory rate 930,567 $ 649,139

State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit 64,512 40,785

Tax-exempt interest income (188,419) (141,973)

Disallowed interest expense 21,503 11,918

Other, net (38,747) 10,664

789,416 $ 570,533
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE .13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Certain parties (principally certain directors and executive officers of the Company, their immediate families and business
interests) were loan customers of and had other transactions in the normal course of business with the Company. Related
party loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had related party loans totaling $1,499,117 and $1,516,176, respectively. During
2005, $32,770 of advances were made to related parties and repayments totaled $49,829. During 2004, $91,806 of advances
were made to related parties and repayments totaled $902,220.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had securities sold under agreements to repurchase with related parties of
$2,740,443 and $2,007,734, respectively.

Deposits from directors and executive officers and their related interests totaled $4,663,922 and $3,217,322 at December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

During 2005, the Company entered into a lease agreement with SP Financial LLC (The LLC), a limited liability company
owned 50% each by two of the Bank's executive officers. The LLC obtained third party financing to purchase the property
to be leased to the Bank. The debt related to this property is guaranteed by these officers but not by the Company.
Additionally, the Company has no investment risk related to the property, and has a valid lease agreement which will remain
in place even if an ownership transfer occurs. For these reasons the LLC is not considered a Variable Interest Entity under
FIN 46(R), and its financial statements have not been consolidated with the Company's. The lease has an initial five year
term and is included in the total future rental payments discussed in Note 14.

NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Company may, from time to time, become a party to legal claims and disputes. At
December 31, 2005, management and legal counsel are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation or unasserted claims
or assessments that could result in losses, if any, that would be material to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has entered into six separate lease agreements for properties in Florence, Charleston, Mount Pleasant and
Lexington, South Carolina for branch banking and mortgage operations. The leases have various initial terms and expire on
various dates. The lease agreements generally provide that the Bank is responsible for ongoing repairs and maintenance,
insurance and real estate taxes. The leases also provide for renewal options and certain scheduled increases in monthly lease
payments. Rental expenses recorded under leases for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 were $341,339 and
$33,000, respectively.

Under this scenario, minimal future rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases having remaining terms in excess
of one year, for each of the next five years in the aggregate are:

2006 6 491,587
2007 382,578
2008 363,000
2009 363,000
2010 363,000

1,963,165
1019.13 1ii161111011131

On January 19, 2006, the Company's Board of Directors approved plans to purchase property and construct or renovate
buildings at several locations for future branch and administrative sites. Future costs related to these plans are estimated to
be approximately $8.9 million.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 15 - EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Earnings per share - basic is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Earnings per share - diluted is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding and dilutive common share equivalents using the treasury stock method. Dilutive common share
equivalents include common shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding stock options.

Basic earnings per share:

For the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004

Net income available to common shareholders 1,947,546 S 1,338,699

Average common shares outstanding - basic 3,251,457 2,580,251

Basic earnings per share 0.60 $ 0.52

Diluted earnings per share:
Net income available to common shareholders 1,947,546 $ 1,338,699

Average common shares outstanding - basic 3,251,457 2,580,251
Incremental shares from assumed conversion of stock options 185,293 182,636

Average common shares outstanding - diluted 3,436,750 2,762,887

Diluted earnings per share 0.57 0.48

NOTE 16 - STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN 

On June 19, 2003, the Company established the 2003 First Reliance Bank Employee Stock Option Plan (Stock Plan) that
provides for the granting of options to purchase up to 250,000 shares of the Company's common stock to directors, officers,
or employees of the Company. This plan was preceded by the 1999 First Reliance Bank Employee Stock Option Plan, which
provided for the granting of options to purchase up to 238,000 shares of the Company's common stock to directors, officers,
or employees of the Company. The per-share exercise price of incentive stock options granted under the Stock Plan may not
be less than the fair market value of a share on the date of grant. The per-share exercise price of stock options granted is
determined by the Board of Directors. The expiration date of any option may not be greater than ten years from the date of
grant. Options that expire unexercised or are canceled become available for reissuance. At December 31, 2005, there were
no options available for grant under the 2003 plan and no options available for grant under the 1999 plan.

A summary of the status of the Company's stock option plan as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and changes during the
period is presented below:

2005 2004

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired

Outstanding at end of year

409,063
70,300

(79,000)

5 6.59
11.51
5.08

390,918
18,145

5 6.38
11.15

659400,363 7.75 409,063
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 16 - STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN - continued

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding under the Company's plan at December 31,
2005:

Outstanding Exercisable

Number of options 400,363 400,363
Weighted average remaining life 6.61 6.61
Weighted average exercise price 7.75 $ 7.75
High exercise price 11.43 $ 11.43
Low exercise price 5.12 5.12

NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a material effect on the Company's financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company's and the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's and the Bank's capital amounts
and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk-weightings, and other
factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to maintain
minimum ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tier I and total capital as a percentage of assets and off-balance-sheet
exposures, adjusted for risk-weights ranging from 0% to 100%. Tier 1 capital of the Company and the Bank consists of
common shareholders' equity, excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available-for-sale, minus certain intangible
assets. Tier 2 capital consists of the allowance for loan losses subject to certain limitations. Total capital for purposes of
computing the capital ratios consists of the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

The Company and the Bank are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on average assets (as defined),
which is known as the leverage ratio. Only the strongest institutions are allowed to maintain capital at the minimum
requirement of 3%. All others are subject to maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum.

As of the most recent regulatory examination, the Bank was deemed well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action. To be categorized well capitalized, the Bank must maintain total risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based, and
Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events that management believes have
changed the Bank's categories.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of the Company and the Bank and the regulatory minimum
requirements.

To Be Well-
Prlinialum Requirement Capitalized Under

For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions

December 31, 2005
The Company

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) I 43,491,000 13.05% $ 26,670,800 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 40,072,000 12.02 13,335,400 4.00 N/A N/A
Tier I capital (to average assets) 40,072,000 10.02 15,998,080 4.00 N/A N/A

The Bank
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 42,199,000 12.68% $ 26,625,200 8.00% $ 33,281,500 10.00%
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Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) 38,780,000 11.65 13,312,600 4.00 19,968,900 6.00
Tier I capital (to average assets) 38,780,000 9.80 15,832,040 4.00 19,790,050 5.00
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 17 - REGULATORY MATTERS - continued

Minimum Requirement
For Capital

Actual Adequacy Purposes

To Be Well-
Capitalized Under
Prompt Corrective
Action Provisions

December 31, 2004
The Company

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 29,875,000 12.52% $ 19,093,680 8.00% N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 27,117,000 11.36 9,546,840 4.00 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 27,117,000 10.11 10,729,280 4.00 N/A N/A

The Bank
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets) $ 24,392,000 10.23% 5 19,084,000 8.00% 5 23,855,000 10.00%
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets) 21,634,000 9.07 9,542,000 4.00 14,313,000 6.00
Tier 1 capital (to average assets) 21,634,000 8.07 10,729,280 4.00 13,411,600 5.00

NOTE 18 - UNUSED LINES OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from unrelated companies
totaling $33,500,000. These lines of credit are available on a one to fourteen day basis for general corporate purposes. The
Company also has a line of credit to borrow funds from the Federal Home Loan Bank of up to $121,044,000. As of
December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company had borrowed $23,500,000 and $27,900,000, respectively, on this line.
Additionally, the Company has the ability to buy brokered time deposits at December 31, 2005.

NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made at a specific
point in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. Because no market
value exists for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future
expected loss experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments:

Cash and Due from Banks - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Federal Funds Sold and Purchased - Federal funds sold and purchased are for a term of one day and the carrying amount
approximates the fair value.

Securities Available:for-Sale - Fair value equals the carrying amount which is the quoted market price. If quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable securities.

Nonmarketable Equity Securities - The carrying amount of nonmarketable equity securities is a reasonable estimate of fair
value since no ready market exists for these securities.

Loans Held-for-Sale - The carrying amount of loans held for sale is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans Receivable - For certain categories of loans, such as variable rate loans which are repriced frequently and have no
significant change in credit risk and credit card receivables, fair values are based on the carrying amounts. The fair value of
other types of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be
made to the borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 19 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Deposits - The fair value of demand deposits, savings, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair values of certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies
current interest rates to a schedule of aggregated expected maturities.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase - The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value because these
instruments typically have terms of one day.

Advances From Federal Home Loan Bank - The fair values of fixed rate borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash
flow calculation that applies the Company's current borrowing rate from the Federal Home Loan Bank. The carrying
amounts of variable rate borrowings are reasonable estimates of fair value because they can be repriced frequently.

Junior Subordinated Debentures - The carrying value of junior subordinated debentures approximates its fair value since the
debentures were issued at a floating rate.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable - The carrying value of these instruments is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Off-Balance -Sheet Financial Instruments - Fair values of off-balance sheet lending commitments are based on fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
counterparties' credit standing.

The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments were as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004

Carrying Estimated Fair
Amount Value 

Carrying
Amount 

Estimated Fair
Value       

Financial Assets:
7,264,897 $Cash and due from banks S 7,264,897 S 7,264 3,803,535 $

22,442,000
3,803,535

22Federal funds sold 22,442,000 1,042,000 1,042,000
Securities available-for-sale 37,121,479 37,121,479 28,567,666 28,567,666
Nonmarketable equity securities 1,745,850 1,745,850 1,714,700 1,714,700

,,538988Loans, including loans held for sale 319,538,958 239,694,982 236,534,744
Accrued interest receivable 2,139,742 2,189,742 1,458,673 1,458,673
Financial Liabilities:
Demand deposit, interest-bearing transaction, and savings accounts $ 148,322,356 $ 148,322,856 $ 39,385,369 $ 89,385,369

,186114,042Certificates of deposit 156,472,000 136,108,458 136,642,893
,859,904 3,859,904 3,061,903Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 3 3,061,903

Advances from Federal Home
,23,500000Loan Bank 23,372,000 27,900,000 26,834,409

Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000
446,303

10,310,000
742,017Accrued interest payable 446,303 742,017

Notional
Amo unt

Estimated Fair
Value

Notional
Am o unt

Estimated Fair
Value

Off-Balanee-Sheet Financial Instruments:
Commitments to extend credit $ 59,195,691 $ $ 31,702,000 $
Standby letters of credit 1,699,307 720,000
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 20 - FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets
Cash
Investment in banking subsidiary
Nonrnarketable equity securities
Investment in trust

December 31,

2005 2004

739,230
38,668,573

118,750
310,000

$ 5,325,224
21,875,795

100,000
 —

Other assets 188,876 57,630

Total assets $ 40,025,429 5 27,358,649

Liabilities
Accounts payable 64,794 $
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000

Total liabilities 10,374,794

Shareholders' equity 29,650,635 27,358,649

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 40,025,429 5 27,358,649
110.5212.8.SIESIE.ERIRMA

Condensed Statements of Income

December 31,

2005 2004

Income
Expenses

7,264 $ —
367,981 54,783 

Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary
Income lax benefit

(360,717) (54,/831
136,145 20,270     

Income before equity in undistributed earning of banking subsidiary
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary

(224,569) (34,513)
2,172,115 1,373,212

Net income

-46-

1,947,546 $ 1,338,699
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 20 - FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)  - continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Increase in other assets
Increase in other liabilities
Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of nonmarketable equity securities
Investment in trust

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Stock issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from stock issuance
Issuance of shares to ESOP
Purchase of treasury stock
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures
Transfer of capital to the Bank

Net casts provided (used) by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and casts equivalents, ending of year

December 31,

2005 2004

5 1,947,546

(131,246)
64,794

(2,172,115)

5 1,333,699

(6,175)

(1,373,212)

(291,021) (40,688)

(18,750)
(310,000)

(328,750)

401,360

298,957
(2,500)

10,310,000
(14,974,040)

(75,960)

8,050,000
355,296

(7,396)

(3,000,000)

(3,966,223) 5,321,940

(4,585,994)
5,325,224

5,281,252
43,972

739,230 5,325,224
11161101.148360MikailifilIMINK
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC,

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents;

Cash and due from banks

March 31,
2008

December 31,

2007

(Unaudited)

7,929,684 S

(Audited)

7,164,650

Seett0ti. available-for.sale 57,630,118 58,580,313
Nonmarketable Nutty securities 4,372,200 3,930,400

Total inve.nent securities 62,002,318 62,510,713
Loans held for sale 18,4(13,137 19,600850
Loans useivahle 473,069,194 468,137,690

Less allowance for loan losses (5,539,601) (5,270,607)

Loan, net 467,529,593 462,867,083
Premises and equipment, net 23,713,588 22,233,746
Accrued interest receivable 2,977,560 3,092,767
Other real eSlittn owned 327,950 196,950
Casts surrender value life insurance 10,662,027 10,540,273
Other assets 4,047,044 3,497,180

Total assets 597,592,901 5 591,7114,212
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Liabilities

Deposits

Notlinter.1-bearing transaction mul. 45,178,443 S 43,542,528
Interest-bearing transaction accounts 31,058,228 39,4511,393
Savings 90,229,421 85,819,481
Time dc•posids $1003000 and over 185,683,283 169,825,252
Other time deposits 97,861,715 110,860,061

Total deposits 450,011,090 449,497,715
Stmurities sold under agrudment to repurchase 7,858,845 7,927,754
Federal holds purchased 11,482,000 13,359,000
Advances from Federal Home Loam Bank 73,500,000 69,000,000
NOto payable 3,000,000 3,000,000
Junior subordinated debentures 10,310,000 10,310,000
Accnied interest payable 684,067 767,577
Other liabilities 2,960,384 814,262

Total liabilities 559,806,386 554,076,308
Shareholders' Equity

Common stock, S0.01 par value, 20,11110,11(111 shares audit 1, 3,513.174 and 3,494,646 shares issued and outsuunling at March 31, 20418 and DMORIbLT 31. 2007, respectively 35,132 34,946
Nonvested restricted st ock (273,344) (152,762)
Capital surplus 26,047,924 25,875,012
Treasury stock (111,571 shares or cost at December 31, 20(17) (150,975) (145,198)
Retained earnings 12,039,496 11,417,275
Amunultited caller comprebouive Men. 94,282 (1,369)

MIA shareholders' equity 37,780,515 37,027,904

- 1-0.1 liabilities and. hareholders' equity 597,592,901 5 591,704,212

Son nous to condensed COIISOlidated 1111.1elai Stalt31.1LS.
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FIRST RELIANCE BA NCSHAFtES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

(Unaudited)

Interest income

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2008 2007

Lanes, including fees 9,099,475 S 7,892,673
Investment securities

Taxable 340,384 234,334
Nontaxable 327,610 170,141

Federal bunk sold 1,893 78.659
Other interest income 51,2911 40,305

Total 9,826,652 8,416,112
Interest expense

Time deposits over S 100,000 2,037,053 1,392,470
Other deposits 1,902,095 2,187,668
Giber interest expense 910,52(1 447,293

Total 4,858,668 4,027,431
Net interest incoine 4,967,984 4,388,681

Provision for loan lossts 501,603 135,234

Net interest income atter provision for loan losses 4,466,381 4,253,447

Non interest income

Service charges on deposit accounts 437,135 442,670
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 559,384 47(1,242
Brokerage fees 50,330 40,800
lissome from bank owned life insur.ce 121,754 100,740
Other charges, commissions and re. 113,272 77,762
Gain on securities available for sale 1,021
Gain (loss) on sale sloth. - real estate 9,305
Gain on sale of tinsel asses 14,415
Otter non-interest buns. 49,919 36,110

Total 1,331,794 1,193,185
Nosinterest expenses

Salaries and benefits 2,944,751 2,595,775
Ocesspency exp.,/ 339,703 337,396
Furniture and u(ssipinost expense 212,959 190,661
Other operating expusses 1,236 983 1,381,410

Total 4,734,396 4,505,242
Income before taxes 1.063,779 941,390

Income tax provision 237,656 234,183

Net income 826,123 S 707,207

Basle earnings per share S 0.24 5 11.21

Diluted earnings per share 5 0.23 S 0.20

Soo notes to condensal Gmsolidated financial stattments.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity and Comprehensive Income

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

(11 audited)

Conlin. Stock Capitol

surplits

Nom

vested restricted

stock

Treasury Retained

stock earnings

Accumulated

other

comprehensive

income TotalSou us Amount

Hahne, December 31, 21106 3,424,876 $ 34,249 1 25,257,819 S (66,131) 5 $ 8,857.755 0 9,576 I 34,093,263

Net income 707,208 707,208

081m- comprehensive gain, eel 07130 espcare 00518200 35,330 35,330

Comprehensive income 742,538

Issuance o 8 shares to 404c plan 5,750 97 143,715 143,812

Non- vested restricted stock 4,002 40 59,996 (46,R15) 13,220

F-xercisc o I' stock options 21,000 210 106,375 106,515

Balance, March 31, 2007 3,459,630 i 34,596 $ 25,567,900 $ (112,946) $ - 1 9,564,963 5 44,906 5 35,099,419

Balmme December 31, 20117

Adjustment to rellect the cumulative-efect or change aceeuntin 0 n- IA

3,494,646 $ 34,946 5 25,875,012 $ (152,762) 5 (145,198) 5 11,411,275 5 (1,369) S 373127,904

arrangements (203,902) (203,902)

Balance, Deemrlhor 31, 2)107 3,494,646 34,946 25,875,012 (152,762) (145,198) 11,213,373 (1,369) 36,824,002

Net income 826,123 826,123

Other comprehensive gain, eel onax expense of 49,275 95,651 55,651

Comprehensive income 921,774

Non- vested restimted clock 14,009 141 22,455 (120,582) (97,910)

Purchase a treasury stock (11,777) (11,777)

Exercise o stock options 4,500 45 150,497 150,502

orelt 31, 2000 3,513,155 5 35,132 5 26,647,924 $ (273,344) S (156,975) $ 12,039,496 $ 94,282 S 37,786,505

Sec notes to contIonsul consnlidattx1 financial stotanents.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Three Months Ended

March 31,

2008 2007

Nov income 826,123 S 707,207

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash vocal by pert [Mg activiii

Provision for Into Woes 501,603 135,234

Depreciation and amortization expense 287,706 170,029

Gain on sale of equipment (14,415)

Gain on sale utOREO (9,365)

Gain on sale or available-for-sale securities (1,021)

Discount accretion and premium amortization 7,274 14,806

Deferred income tax benefit (559,154) (322,596)

Decrease in inter. receivable 115,207 190,223

Decrease in interest payable (83,510) (16,351)

Disbursements for loans held for sale (36,572,893) (33,444,353)

Proceeds from loans held for sale 37,770,606 31,976,592

Restricted Stock (97,986) 13,221

Increase 111 other assets (172,313) (418.985)

Increase (docreise) in other liabiliti. 1,892,946 (78,677)

Net Gash provided (used) by operating activiti es 3,915,609 (1,097,851)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases or securities available-for-sale (1,410,755)

Sale or securities available-For-sale 1,258,870

Net increase at loans remeivahle (5,365,863) (23,506,685)

Maturities of s.uriti. available-au-sale 1,087,846 478,138

Salon or other red estate owned 0 516,205

Purchase of non marketable equity ...Ms (441,800) (407,300)

Proceeds on sale of nonmarketable equity securities 814,500

Proceeds limn disposal pranis., timniture, and equipment 38,060

Purch ases of premises and equip.. (1,636,950) (1,914,422)

Net each usexl by investing activities (6,356,767) (24,133,383)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Ned Meru. (decrease) in demand deposits, inter.kbearing transaction accounts and go COM. (2,346,309) 6,560,928

Net inermise in certir.t. of deposit nod oat. time deposits 2,859,685 28,813,129

Net increase (decrease) M maturities sold audio agreements to repurehase (68,909) 551,310

Inerease (decrease) iu advances from dm Fexlerat Horne Loan Bank 4,500,000 (9,50(1,000)

Proceeds from issuance of slum. to ESOP 150,502 143,812

Decrease in Fed Funds Purchased (1,877,000)

Sale or treasury stock (11,777)

Proceeds lion the exercise or stock options 106,585

Non cash provided by financing activities 3,200,192 26,675.764

Net increase in casts and cash equivalents 705,034 1,444,530

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 7,164,650 31,463,075

Cm h and cash equivalents,  end 7,929,684 S 32,907,005

Cash paid during the period

Itmome tax. 403,499 S 12,383

Wert. 4,942,178 S 4,043,782

See notes to condom.' minsolidatml financial statements.

http://idea.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408029276/v114479  10q.htm 2/13/2009

http://idea.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1172102/000114420408029276/v114479


Unassociated Document Page 7 of 33

FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note I - Basis of Presentation

The aecompanying financial statements have boor prepared in accordance with the requirements for interim financial statements and, accordingly, they we condensed and omit certain disclosures, which would appear in audited annual financial

statements. The financial statunorts as of Mareh 31, 2008 and for the interim periods ended March 31, 2008 and 2(107 are unaudited and, in the opinion of management, include all adjustments (consisting or normal recurring accruals) considered

necessary for a fair presentation. The financial information as of December 31, 2007 has hart derived free the audited financial statements in of that date. For Nether information, ref,er to the financial statements and the notes included in First Reliance

Bancshares, Inn's 2007 audited financial in Form Ill-K.

LIP. 2 - Recently Issued Accounting Pronouneementy

The following is a summary ofrecent authoritative pronouncements:

In December 2007, the PASS issuexl SPAS No. I41(R), "Business Combinations," ("SFAS 141(8)") which replaces SFAS 141. SPAS I41(R) establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer in a business combination recognizes mad

rinosurm in in financial statements doe identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any controlling interact; recognizes and measures goodwill acquired in die business combination or a gain horn a bargain purchase; and determinerswhat

information to disclose to enable users attar financiid statements to evaluate Menemre and financial effects of the bus inms combination. FAS 141(R) is effective for acquisitions by the Company taking place on or art. - January I, 2009. Early adoption

is prohibited. Accordingly, a calendar year-end company is required to rucord and disclose business combinations following existing accounting guidance until Jantiwy I, 2009. The Company will assess the impact of SPAS 14 l(R) if and when a future

acquisition occurs.

In December 2007, dm FASB issued SFAS, No. IGO, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements—an ante:H.1 ml of A RB Na 51" ("SPAS 160"k SFAS 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling

Minima ina subsidiary and for the &consolidation a a subsidiary. Bedbre Otis statonum limited guidance existed for reporting noncontrolling interests (minority interest). As a result,diversityin practice exists. In some casesminority interest is

reported as a liability and in others it is reported in the mezzanine suition between liabilities wad equity. Spemitleally, SPAS 160 requiem the recognition of n noneonvolling interctt (minority interest) as equity M die consolidated financials statement

and separate from dee parent's equity. The amount of net income attributable to the noneontroiling interest will he included in consolidated net income on the face of doe income statement. SFAS 160 clarifies that changes in a parent's ownership

interest in a subsidiary that do not result in demonsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires that a parent recognize gain or loss in net in  wirera subsidiary is

deconsoliclated. Such gain or loss will be measured using the fair value of the noncemuolling equity inymtment on the &consolidation date. SFAS IGO w)aIm includes expand -al disclosure requirements regarding the interes

come

ts of the parent and in

tioucontrolling interests. SPAS 160 is effective for the Company on January I, 2009, Earlier adoption is pmilibitol. The Company is mirrently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of SFAS IGO will have on its financial position, rmults of

operations and cash flows.

ht March 2008. dm PASS issomi SFAS Na 161, "Disclowyes about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" ("SPAS 101"). SFAS 161 req.es untamed disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby improving the

transparency of financial reporting. It is intended to milieu,ce the currue disclosure framework in SFAS 133 by requiring dial objudivei for using derivative instruments he disclosed M terms of underlying risk and accounting designation. This

disclosure better conveys the pempose or derivative use in toms oldie risks that the unity is intending to manage. SFAS 161 is effurtive for die Company on January I, 2009. This pronouncement does not impact accounting nminurernuas but will

result in additional disclosures if the Company is involved in material derivative and hedging activities at that time-

In Febrtiary 2008, the FA SB issued PASS Staff Position No. 140-3, "Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets and Remmehne Financing Transactions" ("FSP 140-3"). This FSP provides guidance on accounting for a transfer of an linamcial asst

aural day transferor's repurchase financing of the asset. This FSP presumes that an initial transfer of a financial asset and a repurchase financing are cousin:reel part of the some arrangement Oinked transaction) under SFAS No. 1411. However, if certain

criteria are mu, dm initial transfer and repurchase financing are not evaltiaiul as a linkexl transaction and are evaluated separately under Statement 140. FSP 140-3 will be effective for financial statements issued far fiscal yews beginning atim

November IS, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years and earlier application a not permitted. Accordingly, this FSP is effective for the Company MI January I. 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact, if any, the adoption of

FSP 14(1-3 will have on its financial position, results of operations and 1.11 flows.
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC,

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

In April 2008, the FA SB issued PASS Staff Position No. 142-3, "Determination of the Useful Life or Intangible Assets" ("FSP 142-3"). This FSP amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to

determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset wider SPAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". The intent of this FSP is to improve the consistency between the useful life of e recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142

and the period of expos: Rid cash flows used to measure the fair value oldie asset under SFAS No. 14I(R), "Business Combinations," and other U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. This FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal

years beginning after December IS, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years and early adoption is prohibited. Accordingly, this FSP is effective for the Company on January I, 2009. The Company does not believe the adoption of FSP 142-3

will have a material bnpact on its tinimcial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Effective January I, 2008, the Company adopted SPAS No 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS 157") which provides a frwiework for measuring and disclosing fair value under genually accepted accounting principles. SEAS 157 requires

disclosures about the fair value of assets ;met liabilities rovrognived in the balance sheet ill periods subsume.nt to initial roxiognition, whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis (for example, available-for-sale investment securities) or on a

nourwuning basis (for example, impaired lows).

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the exchange price dial would be received for an asset or paid to transfer it liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous marks for the asset or liability in tin orderly transaction between market

participants on mho measurement date. SPAS 157 also establish. a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the we of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard describes

were levels or inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level I Quintet priest itt active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level I assets stool liabilities include debt and equity securities and derivative contains that arc traded in as active eecNinge market, as well Os U.S,

Treasury, otter U.S. Government aid agency mortgage-backed debt sox:urines that are highly liquid and are actively trailed in over-the-counter markets,

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level I prices such as quoted pr..e for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or vial be corroboratrvl by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 asses and liabilities include debt securities with quoted FM. dial are traded less tioxtuently than exchange-nailed

instrianwnts and derivative contracts whose value is detenninal using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data

This category generally includes con am derivative contracts and impaired loans.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs dial we supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to One lair value of die assets or liabilities. Level 3 ioneto awl liabiliti. include financial insinuentla whose value is

determined wing pricing mtulels, discounted Lash flow methodologies, or siinilar imbiques, as well as instruments for which die determination of lair value requires significant managenwit judgment or

For example, this category generally includes certain private uglily inv...., retained residual interests in securitirntions, residential mortgage servicing rights, and highly-structural or long-term

derivative convects,

The Conipimy low no I iabilitiw carried at fair value or measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.

-8-
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company is predominantly an asset based lend, with rend estate serving as collateral on a substantial majority of loans. Loans which are &tenni:al to he impair.' are primarily valued nonrecurrbig basis at the fair vett. or the underlying real estate

collateral. Such fair values are obtainal using indepmdent appraisals, winch the Company considers ID he level 2 inputs. The aggregate carrying amount of impairml loans at March 31, 2008 wet 13,600,197.

PASS Stall Position No, FAS 157-2 delays the implementation of SPAS 157 until the first tillart, of 219)9 with respect to goodwill, other intangible assets, real rotate and other assay amplirml through foreclosure and other non-financial assets

measured at fair value on a nom -marring basis,

The Company has no assets or liabilities whose Mir values are meas..' using level 3 inputs.

Other amounting standards that have been issued or propmml by the FASB or other standards setting bode, are nut exp.:tat to have a material impact on the Company's financial position , results of operations or C.11 flows.

Note ility Incentive Plan 

During the first quarter 01'2008, the Company granted no stock appreeiatim rights. The Company granted 62,481 stock appreciation rights during the same period of 2007. A stock appreciation right Mides an individual to receive the excess of the fair
market value From the grant date to the exercise dale in a settlement of Company stack. The Company has fund.' the liability through charges to earnings, The ammed liability for the stock appreciation rights at March 31, 2008 was 5120,451.

A summary of the status of the Company's stock appreciation righM as of the three months ended March 31, 2008 is presented below:

Three months ended

March 31, 2008

Shares

Outstanding Si January I 93,981
Granted

Exercisul

Forfeited

Outstanding at March 31, 218)8 93,981

During the three months mated March 31, 2008, the Company groomed 14,009 sham or restricted stock, pursuant to the 2006 Emily Incentive Plan. The Company grantml 4,002 shares of restricted stock during she same period of 2007. The shares

"cliff' vest in dunce years and are fully vested on Marvin 28, 2)1111. The weight.' average fair value o f restricted stock granted in three ntonths ended March 31, 2008 cm 514.16. Compensation cost associated with the gram was 530,015 For the three

months mnlal March 31, 2008
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3 - Etmity Incentive Pim canlinued

A summary or the mina of the Company's restrict.] stock as of the three months ended March 31, 2008 is presentol below:

Three months ended

March 31, 2008

Shares

Outstanding at January I 16,195
Granted 14,009
Exec sod 1,819

Forfeit.

Outstanding at March 31, 2008 28,385

Note 4 - Stock Com pen

On June 19, 2003, the Company established the 2003 First Reliance Bank Employ. Stock Option Plan (Stock Plan) that provides Ihr the grinning of orMom to purchase up to 250,000 shams at' the Company's common stock to directors, officers, or

anployees of dm Company. This plan was pocedol by the 1999 First Reliance Bank Employee Stock Option Plan, which provictol For the granting of options to purchase up to 238,000 shares of the Company's common stock to directors, officers, or

employe. of the Company. The per-01000 exercise price of incentive stock options granted uncles - the Stock Plan may not be less than the fair market value of a share on the into of grant. The per-share exercise price of stock options granted is

determined by the Board or Directors. The expiration dicta of any option may not he greater than ten years from Oho /late of glut. Options dint expire unexocised or are canceled become available lin reissuance. At March 31, 2008, there were no

options available for grant tattler the 2003 plan and no options available for grant tinder the 1999 plan.

A summary of the status of the Company's stock option plan as of the three months ended March 31, 2008 cluingrn during the period is presented below:

Three months ended

March 31 2008

Shares

Average

Exercise

Price

Outstanding at damnify I 278,847 5 8.32

Granted

Exercisol 4,500 5.00

Forfeited 2,500 11.00

Outstanding at March 31, 2008 271,846 S 8.35

-10-
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Bask earnings per share

Income available to co .non shareholders

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options

Non-vested restricted stock

Diluted earnings per share

himne available to common shareholders plus asstuned conversion

Basic earnings per share

Income available to common shareholders

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options

Non-vested restricted stock

Diluted earnings per share

Income available to common shareholders plus mured conversion

Note 6 - Comprehensive Income

826,123 3,494,862 I 0.24

35,533

6,466

3,452,863 S 11.24

Three Months Ended March 31, 201)7

Income Shares Per Share

(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount

707,207 3,432,022 $ 0.21

117,374

193

707,207 3,549,589 $ 0.20

826,123
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FIRST RELIANCE BANCSHARES, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Note - Earnineis P re tihzrg

A r.oneiliation of the numerators and denominators uscvl to caieulitte basic and diluted earnings per share for the lhree mouth periods end. March 31, 2008 and 20()7 are as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,2008

Income

(Numerator) Shares (Denominator)

Per Share

Amount

Compre hensive Income - Accounting principles gerikally require thid recognized income, expenses, gains, and loss. be itwludexi in nert incomes Although certain changes in asseis and liohiliti., such as utuenlized gauss and loss. on available-air-

s:de s.nrities, are reported as a separate component o r the equity section of the balance. heet, such items, along with net income, are components olcomprehensive income.

The componesits or other comprehensive income and related tax effects are as follows:

Pre-tax

Amount

Tax

Benefit

Net-of-tax

Amount

For the Quarter Ended March 31,20081

Unrealized gains ern sewn.. available-kr-sale 144,920 S 49,275 5 95,651

Retchwsilication adjustment for gains (losses) realized in net income

144,926 $ 49,275 S 95,651

For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2007:

Unrealized gains on securities available-kr-side 54,551 S 18,547 S 311,1104

Reclassification adjustment kr gains realizexl in net income 1,021 347 674

53,531 $ 18,200 S 35,330

aok_l = laeLlamiltsatI90.8

Certain captions and amounts in the March 31, 2007 10-Q were reclassiliexl to sunburn with the March 31, 21)(78 presentation.
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